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2020 Best 100f East China Real Fstate Developers Brasi Valae
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2020 Bes1 100 of China Real Estate Developers

BIIX AR FRBARLS

LBEARA AR
FRARERAL A
Z0=08ZA

The 2020 Appraisal Results Conference of China Top 500 Real
Estate Developers jointly hosted by China Real Estate Association,
Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute (/& 5/EEH
EET7EBT) and China Real Estate Appraisal Center was officially
held. According to the appraisal results, Datang Real Estate was
awarded as one of the Top 100 Real Estate Developers in China
and Top 10 for Stable Operation in 2020!

At the 2020 Appraisal Results Conference of China Real Estate
Corporate Brand Value jointly hosted by China Real Estate
Association, Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute (L&
B 5 EEMEMITF) and China Real Estate Appraisal Center,
Datang Real Estate was awarded as one of the “Eastern China Top
10 Real Estate Developers in 2020 in terms of Brand Value (2020
B i EE R B (b 3 TR BB (B 2E 5R1058)” by virtue of its strong
brand strength and ranked 8th, showing the high recognition of
the brand value of Datang Real Estate by the national industry
institutions and professional market organizations and the
acceptance of the development achievements of Datang Real
Estate brand.

Datang Real Estate was awarded the title of “Real Estate Outstanding
Award 2020 (20207 BIFE K R W HE ) at the Boao Real
Estate Forum hosted by the Guandian Real Estate Agency, which
reflects the recognition of Datang Real Estate’s strength and
corporate brand by industry research institutions and mainstream
media, and also proves the great development potential of Datang
Real Estate.

Ll B KRR
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AWARDS OF THE GROUP
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AWARDS OF THE GROUP
KEFkRE

Datang Real Estate won the “2020 China’s Most Potential Valuable
Real Estate Developers” award granted by Leju Finance Research
Institute through modeling and analysis of land reserve, growth
rate of sales area of major real estate developers, and the number
of real estates in various tier cities in the first half of 2020, which
demonstrates the recognition of development potential of Datang
Real Estate for the year.

The 10th Annual Meeting of the Most Valuable Real Estate
Enterprises of China was held in Shenzhen, which was hosted
by the National Business Daily, at which the “Valuable Real Estate
Ranking of China for 2020" was officially released. Datang Real
Estate was awarded as the “Annual Valuable Real Estate Enterprise”
with its strong comprehensive strength.

The Top 100 List of Chinese Property Projects (R Bl EE B (X & 58
1) was unveiled in Guangzhou. A list of outstanding real estate
enterprises was selected by Times Media based on the industry
database and other data sources and corporate reports. Datang
Real Estate was awarded as one the “2020 Most Potential Real
Estate Enterprises of China” with its good development potential.

KB E SR B 44 = B AC AT 7o B AB B2 B9 [ 20204F
TREEENEERD BB - ZEELLEH
ERERRBRBYH S REER2020F FFFR il
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SERENERRE

PEENSRASERE
2020E1F

The 13th China Media Management Conference and the Top 100
List of 2019-2020 China Media Management Conference hosted
by the Organizing Committee of China Media Management
Conference was held in Xiamen, at which, the Organizing
Committee of China Media Management Conference officially
awarded Datang Real Estate the Annual Brand Value Achievement
Award.

The comprehensive selection of the 15th Kinpan Awards for Hainan
and Guangxi provinces was successfully held in Nanning. After
fierce competition and strict professional selection by the jury,
Dynasty Zhenguan (/& 8:87) in Nanning city, Guangxi province
stood out from many outstanding competing projects and won
the “First Prize in the Annual Comprehensive Class of the Best
Residential Projects”, bringing additional splendor to the list of
the year!

The list of the second batch of winning projects of the 9th
(2019-2020) China Real Estate “Guangsha Award” was officially
announced. With its excellent comprehensive quality, the project
of Dynasty Shengshi Phases | (KB Bttt —HA) successfully stood
out from the rest of other projects across the country and won
the 9th “Guangsha Award". It is the only resettlement project in
the real estate industry in Guangxi Province that won the award.

7)

9)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

WU DI R
CHAIRMAN =&

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board of Directors”) of
Datang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the audited
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MACRO INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

2020 is an extraordinary year in the history of China. The frequent
occurrence of Black Swan incidents, the outbreak of the epidemic in
China at the beginning of the year, the fusing of stock market in the
United States, and the second rebound of the epidemic at abroad at the
end of the year, etc, all of which have a profound impact on the global
economy and society. Amidst huge difficulties and challenges, China’s
economy achieved a “V"-shaped recovery in the second quarter, and the
actual GDP growth rate in the fourth quarter reached 6.5% year-on-year.
In 2020, China's GDP exceeded RMB100 trillion for the first time, with an
actual increase of 2.3% year-on-year, making it the only major economy
in the world to achieve positive economic growth.
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However, the epidemic has not changed the keynote of “residential
properties are for living, not speculation” in the real estate market.
Localized policy has beenimplemented to accurately control and stabilize
the market in the PRC. Particularly, since the second half of the year, the
financial supervision on real estate market has been strengthening, and
several cities with unstable housing prices and land premiums have
successively upgraded their control policies with an aim to promote
the rational return of the market. Nevertheless, sales of commercial
properties for the whole year still achieved breakthrough of exceeding

RMB17 trillion, up by 8.7% year-on-year.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the reporting period, the Group recognised sales revenue during
the year of RMB10.6 billion, representing a significant increase of 30.6%
compared with last year, and achieved net profit for the year of RMB0.95
billion, representing an increase of 51.4% compared with last year. The
net profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB0.715 billion.
In order to return the trust and support of shareholders, the Board of
Directors proposed the distribution of a final dividend of RMB11 cents
(equivalent to approximately HK$13 cents) per share for the year 2020.

WORK REVIEW FOR 2020

“The layout of urban agglomerations and the deep cultivation of
metropolitan areas” is our basic strategy. During the reporting period,
the Group continued to deepen its understanding of deep cultivation in
the metropolitan area, closely followed the industry situation, adhered
to the implementation of the investment standard that prioritizes cash
flow indicators, pay equal attention to deep cultivation and external
expansion, and replenish land reserves effectively. During the year, the
Group obtained land reserves with the total GFA of 8.39 million sg.m.
and entered into 14 new cities, which further opened up space for
regional layout, of which, the area of of new land bank in the Yangtze
River Delta was 1.69 million sg.m., accounting for 20% of the newly land
bank during this year.
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ERHE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 123 real estate projects,
each in various stages of development, in six large economic zones, with
a total site area of approximately 20.44 million sq.m. in land bank. The
Group was ranked 73rd among the Sales Top 200 Ranking List of China
Real Estate Enterprise for 2020 by CRIC Real Estate Research Institute.

While expanding our territory, the Group formally implemented a
platform-based strategy in 2020. With this strategy, through an open
platform and a market-oriented transaction mechanism, parties
participating in the platform such as partners, upstream and downstream
suppliers, and funders can achieve resource sharing, value creation, and
ultimately complete the sharing of interests of all parties and build a

win-win ecosystem.

2020 is a milestone for the Group to achieve a capital breakthrough.
In December 2020, the Company successfully listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
raised total proceeds of approximately HK$1.49 billion (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.26 billion).

In addition, in the anti-epidemic process in 2020, the Group also
demonstrated our social responsibility and duty. The Group donated

120205124318 - AEEEe R AR EHEA 123
BFENTREMAERENNEERER - TRBEEEREL
2,044 ¥ 730K o A& B 5o i it A B 2B AT 482020
FREEEDENETop 20080HTEE735 -
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D EREELET  HEEESM49EBTIEA
R¥&#N2618TT) ©

LEN - FE2020F B IBIBE M TUR BIEF - IR TR
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a total of 430,000 materials to 25 medical institutions, 20 government
anti-epidemic departments, Red Cross, international organizations, and
individuals in 14 cities across the country, all of which contributed to

the gradual and effective control of the domestic epidemic.

OUTLOOK FOR 2021

Looking forward to the future, the Group will always adhere to the
“customer-focused, high-quality and large-scale development theme,
two-wheel drive of platform strategy and product power improvement”
to achieve further growth in performance.

In terms of specific businesses, the Group will continue to firmly
implement the platform strategy, broaden the circle of friends, and
accelerate the gathering of resources. The Group will insist to focus on the
customer’s value perception, and continue to promote the improvement
of product power. The Group will be guided by the requirements of
the capital market, and continue to improve the level of financial and
cost management. In addition, the Group will actively promote the
construction of headquarters in Shanghai, and is determined to create
a more open and compatible platform, introduce more high-quality
resources, and achieve national layout with a better brand image.

REEEZRERAT . —2-ZEFHE 13

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

BHE 0B RE@ER - AL+ FE U RERK
M XEFHRBBEMDE  WHIBRARBEESF
BIERIES]

2021FERE

REARR  AEEBBEREFUZEPAPLNGEE
MBCERERE  AFatBREERNREHEHE
BRER] BERFENHEER -

EARBEKL  AEEREERTERT (R -
NERRE  MEREREE  BRUARPHEERM
RENE  FHBEDERNET  WEAMBERR
A FERITPBERRNEERKF o 1o - AEE
IEmES EBRRER  HETE—EERRER
WFE - SIAEZEEER  UEHFNMEFRER
2BEMB -



14 DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED « Annual Report 2020

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

Moreover, the Group will continue to follow closely on the “14th
Five-Year Plan” development strategy of China, firmly implement the
strategy of “making the layout of urban agglomeration, taking root in
metropolitan area”, and adhere to open cooperation. The Group will
grasp the structural and trending opportunities in the new era of China’s
real estate development, steadily expand to cities with high-quality
strategic opportunities, and strive to open up a broader development
space to further consolidate our industry and market position, and
achieve sustained and steady business growth.

gEAN - REEFEEEEK R R - BER
EERBTEMGD - EmERMEE - WERHFHENE
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Meanwhile, the Group will maintain the high degree of transparency
and good corporate governance structure, improve the Company’s
comprehensive management capabilities, enhance its competitiveness,
and actively seek to promote the Company to achieve leapfrog
development through equity investment, introduction of strategic
investors and platform resources, etc., in order to build Datang Real Estate
into a high-quality listed company with sustainable growth capabilities
and achieve win-win situations for customers, employees, society, and

shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, once again, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere appreciation to all shareholders, employees, partners
and customers for their full support to the Group in 2020!

Datang Group Holdings Limited
Wu Di

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021

AEEBRRERAT . —E-FF58E 15

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

R - AEEBRFSENEAERRIFNRRIAE
O RAGENGAERERS  HAGERF
WEBRRABRERAT BB EHEMRESE -
FRERSHEDARERBHEAER  SABHEN
ERRERARKBEREINELE LTAR  BRE
F BT #H& BRROHE -

&

&% AABRIREEZTEM0R0FHNIITHAEE
MEERE - BT - SHAERHUALREFE » BUAR
BHWEE |

AREKEEZERAERLQF
Ria
BER

5% T —F=A+XH










18

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED - Annual Report 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

REVIEW FOR 2020

The outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 will be remembered by history.
The lockdown and economic standstill of many countries affected
by the COVID-19 led to market volatility and downturn of investors’
confidence. Relying on a sound foundation and a well-known
brand, the Group has coped with the turbulent market conditions
calmly, witnessed good financial performance of 2020. Meanwhile,
we believe that the worst moment of the COVID-19 pandemic is
over, and vaccination could be expected to significantly improve
the global economic outlook in the future. Nevertheless, the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will continue. Before the
trend becoming stable, we will prudently manage resources and
adhere to cost control, as well as invest sufficient funds to realize
the strategic deployment of the Group. The management of the
Company currently does not foresee significant disruption in our
business operation due to COVID-19 going forward.

In the first quarter of 2020, the pause button was pressed for the
economy in China. Subsequently, the PRC introduced a series of
anti-epidemic relief policies, which eased the operating pressure of
enterprises to a certain extent. Since the second quarter of 2020, the
epidemic prevention and control in China has achieved remarkable
results, the economy has recovered in an orderly manner, and
the real estate market has ushered in a sales rebound. According
to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, in 2020, the total
sales value of commercial housing was approximately RMB17.4
trillion and the sales area was approximately 1.76 billion square
meters, representing an increase of 8.7% and 2.6% respectively, as
compared with last year. Of which, the growth was strong in first-
tier cities, steady in second-tier cities, and slow in third- and fourth-
tier cities. This shows that the status of the real estate industry in
the national economy is still irreplaceable. With the upgrading of
the national regional strategy, some core cities, node cities and
areas with transportation advantages in the metropolitan area
will be expected to usher in better development opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWE DM

Real Estate Business

In 2020, the Group followed the geographical layout of
2+1+X, focused on existing areas, consolidated existing
layoutin the two urban agglomerations of the Haixi and Beibu
Gulf, and established a relatively stable scale advantage.
Meanwhile, we seized the opportunity of relocating our
headquarters to Shanghai, by taking root quickly in the
Yangtze River Delta region, as well as successively entered
into 14 nodal core cities with economic vitality, such as
Ningbo, Taizhou, Wenzhou, Changzhou, Nantong, Wux
and others. We have strengthened strategic cooperation
with leading companies in the industry, all of which will
lay a solid foundation for the Group to become a national
comprehensive real estate company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWR DN

During the reporting period, the Group's revenue from the
real estate business was RMB10.11 billion. The total GFA
of the land bank was approximately 2044 million square

meters, providing sufficient support for future development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Newly acquired land

In 2020, the Group adopted various land acquisition
methods such as public bidding, auction and listing and
joint ventures, a total of 44 high-quality land parcels were
obtained by the Group, with a total planned GFA of 8.39

million square meters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

2. Land Bank 2. TR
As of 31 December 2020, the total GFA of the Group's HZE2020F128318 - AEB LiEHR
land bank was approximately 20.44 million sq.m. FREEMEA A20448F 77K o EFRRR2020
among which the GFA of completed properties for F128318 - BRIHEEMEI4EFH
sale was 1.34 million sq.m., the rentable GFA for K BERENAHEHAEEI7EFE K -
investment was 0.17 million sq.m. and the GFA of FEERYEIBEFHK o

properties under development was 18.93 million sg.m.
as of 31 December 2020.

Actual/ Completed Percentage

City where Estimated but  GFAheld  Total GFA of interest

the project is date of undelivered  for property under owned by

located Project name completion  Site area GFA investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bt BATARN BENRRE RETH4E

fesm B4R RIBE GBER NREER NREER 0 $ER ARER 2R@ER

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(Fh%)  (Fmk)  (FAX)  (FAK)  (FAK)

Changzhou  Dynasty Zhongnan Shangyuecheng 200 53338 - - 138,941 138,941 36%
i REDE LI
Changzhou  Yuhu Shangguan Garden 200 58,093 - - 138,600 138,600 40%
2 EREETR
Chengdu ~ Jiuyue Lanwan Project 203 68901 - - 229893 29893 40%
wa RREER
Chengdu  Tianyue Royalty 203 58,066 - - 188,169 188,169 26%
wH INALE
Fuzhou Dynasty Shuxiang Yazhu 200 54,189 = = 178821 178821 100%
M REEETE
Fuzhou Pukou Dynasty Royalty 202 15954 - - 53,597 53597 80%
M BORELR
Fuzhou Longjiang Jiujin Pavilion 203 113059 - - 373011 373011 3%
i RINGE
Guigang Guigang Dynasty Royalty 2022 4076 = = 191,686 191,686 63%
&t ERAELR
Guigang (uigang Yating 2004 45,229 = = 178,009 178,009 26%
&t ST
Guigang Guigang Chenguang 204 32760 - - 168,766 168,766 34%
& ¥y

>



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REREBEZRARAE - —Z-TFFH

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE

fesm  BRER RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square

meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Kunming  Tianyu Smart City 2005 138,601 - - 497,798 497,798 20%
2H REEEH
Liuzhou Liuzhou Dynasty Mansion 204 74989 - - 2913% 2913% 51%
Ll INAEEE
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan West Garden 200 56,797 - - 195,703 195,703 78%
N AEEERE
Liuzhou Dynasty Biyuan East Garden 204 4546 - - 168,586 168,586 80%
N AEZERE
Longyan Royalty Wenyuan 2022 26197 = = 79395 79395 33%
Er LESC
Nanning Zhongnan Ziyun Impression 2005 50,128 = = 276,284 276,084 2%
HE PREEDR
Nanning Wuxiang Huguang Institution 203 65,007 = - 326309 326309 14%
HE it e
Nanning Yango Dynasty Royalty 2003 37047 S S 203,5% 203,5% 4%
B Bty
Nanning Wuxiang Lanting Mansion 2023 159,991 S S 903,879 903,879 33%
HE DR AR
Nanning Yango Dynasty Tanjing 204 177,954 = = 877300 877300 41%
HE BRiAERS
Nanning Impression Discovery Bay 02 111,138 - - 614237 614237 17%
LI CF
Nanning Wuxiang Dynasty Youth 201 23817 = = 102193 102,193 97%
HE I5AER
Nanning Jinjiu Royalty 02 68401 = = 380330 380330 5%
HE EEALE
Nanning Tanfu Impression 2022 137811 % - 639,367 639,367 30%
HE BRI%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETWR D

Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
fesm  BRER RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Nanning Binjiang Jinwan 2003 36039 = = 17631 17631 34%
WE B
Nanning Shengshi Chunjiang 204 5774 - - 217058 27058 34%
HE PALENN
Nanning Xi'an Royalty 2023 294% S S 138,09 138,09 33%
HE Bt
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Xuhui Mansion 203 25405 - - 105,195 105,195 51%
HE AR EER
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Phase 2001 94,893 115,465 - - 115465 100%
HE A5
Nanning Dynasty Shengshi Phase I 2001 87,048 100471 - 403327 503,798 100%
HE RESt=H
Nanning Shenghu Yuejing 201 90929 141676 = 193,285 334,960 26%
WE HHiz
Nanning Zhenyuan 204 91849 = = 430927 430927 100%
WE %H
Nanning Dynasty Tianyue 2001 28320 S S 128510 128510 56%
HE REAH
Nanning Nanning Jinkiu Royalty 2023 23,565 = = 95,078 95,078 56%
HE HERRLR
Nanning Nanning Shengshi Jinyue 200 25,66 - - 102415 102415 1%
HE HERHEH
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royalty 2002 27%. = = 143,198 143,198 10%
HE TEAELR
Nanning Anji Dynasty Royalty Phase I 003 9170 - - 57,936 57,936 70%
HE TEAEHZ_H
Nanning Xingning Dynasty Youth 2071 24786 110360 = 121629 231989 7%
HE REAER
-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(®RK)(BBK (®RK) (BEK (®RX)
Nanning Nanning Yunxitai 00 20014 S . 69,155 69,155 25%
WE 4EEEL
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phase I 2001 19,141 = = 180,942 180942 100%
HE RERA=H
Nanning Dynasty Zhenguan 00 45582 1298 S 166,199 167497 85%
HE REEH
Nanning Jinyue Qingshan 2021 32507 68431 = 439688 112420 49%
HE el
Nanning Xingning Dynasty Impression 001 95,750 98783 = = 98,783 40%
AR REREOS
Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phases | & I 2019 5007 6434 67,846 - 74,80 100%
HE REXH— —H
Nanning Longgang Dynasty Royalty 2020 109878 3555 5128 - 40683 100%
HE REAEER
Nanning Dynasty International Center 2018 11,54 4909 34979 S 39,888 100%
HE RERRAD
Nantong Dynasty Zhongnan Yuehu 2002 60,240 = = 97778 97,778 55%
(] REPHRH
Nantong Shiji Yunchen 2024 73942 = = 182,786 182,786 20%
Bk ELER
Nantong Langyuan 2003 42430 = = 101,334 101,334 20%
[ il
Ningbo Chenyue Royalty 200 38013 - - 113391 113391 51%
ER e
Ningbo QiYue li 2023 20,388 - - 39218 39218 100%
ER B
Ningbo Feng Lan Di 202 24387 : - 61,938 61,938 35%
ER BRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETWR D

Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENRRE REth4E
fesm  BRER RIEE fHER HRIER HREER 0 FER AREER AREER
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Ningbo Jiuyun Mansion (56) 2003 n S S 86215 86,215 40%
B AZf (56)
Ningbo Jiuyun Mansion (74) 03 4951 - - 118,044 118044 40%
Bl AEF (74)
Ningde Ningde Dynasty Royalty 2005 19409 - - 55200 55200 55%
2 EEAELR
Putian Putian Yuhu Impression 204 3769 - - 144827 14480 59%
i BRERIK
Putian Putian Xiuyu Dynasty Royalty 03 8319 - - 254507 254507 35%
i BRARAELX
Putian Yuexiu Royalty 003 53647 - - 149321 14931 40%
& AR
Quanzhou  Jinjiang Dynasty Royalty 2000 30773 33,469 - - 33,469 55%
N BIAELY
Quanzhou  Shimao Yuncheng 204 89,544 - - 346,176 346,176 15%
N HREN
Quanzhou Jinjiang Dynasty Mansion 203 66,781 - - 27681 27681 60%
il BIIAEFR
Quanzhou  Spring Impression 202 2953 - - 114482 114482 45%
M HSEX R
Quanzhou  Hufan Julong Guofeng 204 102427 - - 271,768 271,768 10%
i FEREER
Sanming Shaxian Yunzhu 203 53,688 - - 123484 123484 40%
=5 VEEE
Xiamen Tong'an Shuiyunjian 2001 15,000 - - 84816 84816 100%
Ef AR KER
Xiamen Dynasty Hotel 200 16850 - - 64320 64320 100%
Ef REBE
>
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
fesm  BRER RIEE fHER HRIER HREER 0 FER AREER AREER
(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)
(FA%)  (Fa%)  (Fmk)  (FAK)  (¥AX)
Xiamen Dynasty Center 2024 93,166 - 38,131 27918 66,049 100%
Ef RER
Suining Suining Zhongliang No. 1 Yard 202 4828) - - 9023 98,023 40%
kz FER2 58k
Taizhou Chuangshi Mingdl 02 32862 - - 102,829 102829 4%
a g4l
Taizhou Nanguan Impression 2022 16,048 = = 41,567 41,561 47%
a HEHR
Tianjin Vision Commercial Square 03 74076 31 - 1717 120238 30%
RE TRERER
Tianjin Tangsheng Yayuan 001 198873 = = 344747 344747 100%
RE ERER
Tianjin Tangyi Yayuan 200 35627 - - 127959 12799 100%
RE EERA
Tianjin Tangyun Yayuan 2024 97911 S . 321638 321638 100%
¥ EREE
Wenzhou  Xingyue Mingzhu 2023 26,686 = = 84,154 84,154 35%
il BfiAg
Wenzhou Cuican Tianrui 204 42634 = = 120341 120341 41%
il ERAH
Wi Lanyue Yayuan 2003 41m - - 130,204 130,204 30%
B RS
Yibin Jinke Town 2004 184590 - - 622310 622310 40%
EE SR
Yueyang Yueyang Dynasty Royalty Phases 2003 122085 = = 404,969 404,969 100%
L&
i ERAEtE-—=4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Actual/ Completed Percentage

City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest

the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by

located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE

frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(PR (¥RK)  (FAK)  (¥A%) (F5X)

Yueyang Yueyang Dynasty Royalty Phases 2003 124892 S . 405227 40527 100%
V&V
ik EBAEtZMNRH
Zhangjiagang  Tangyue Royalty 203 44599 - - 131,250 131,250 35%
FxE RHEER
Zhangzhou  Jiaomed Dynasty Royalty 00 41558 - - 174541 174541 67%
=N EEINA
Zhangzhou  Mingmen Impression 2019 53338 40,669 3326 = 43,995 100%
2l ZApllE
Zhangzhou  Tianlai Town Phase | 2024 73,607 = = 91444 9144 10%
i ReE-H
Zhangzhou  Tianlai Town Phase I 2005 86,754 = = 113,546 113546 70%
2N ReEZH
Zhangzhou  Dynasty Jinxiu Royalty 202 48278 - - 139310 139310 70%
i AESRER
Zhangzhou  Zhangzhou Dynasty Chunfengli 200 41073 - - 140,193 140,193 51%
2N BNAERRE
Zhangzhou  Yango Dynasty Feili Impression 204 83810 - - 269677 269677 50%
i BRaAEEEIS
Zhangzhou  Jiangshan Tianjing 202 39609 - - 142647 142047 30%
2N il
Zhangzhou Jiaomei Dynasty Impression 2023 15,748 = = 43650 4650 30%
=N EEINAE
Zhangzhou  Zhangzhou Dynasty Chunfengli 202 6189 = = 2315 23115 60%
Phase
B ENAEREE_S
-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
Actual/ Completed Percentage
City where Estimated but ~ GFAheld  Total GFA of interest
the project is date of undelivered for property under owned by
located Project name completion  Site area GFA  investment development  Total GFA the Group
BB/ Bif BATARN BENERE RYtnEE
frgm  EEAR RIKE GHER HREER NREER 0 @R 4REER ARERR

(square (square (square (square (square
meters) meters) meters) meters) meters)

(PR (¥RK)  (FAK)  (¥A%) (F5X)

Zhangzhou  Dynasty Sanmu Impression 2023 17659 - - 69,115 69,115 4%%
West Lake

i Rl i

Zhangzhou  Shimao Dynasty Yunjing 200 12453 - - 40038 40038 31%

i ERAEER

Changsha ~ Repulse Bay 201 133,163 54611 = 5705 60327 100%

R EKE

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression— Yufu 2000 38,304 29,785 - - 29,785 100%

R REENZ 1

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression—Yuxi 2071 81362 S S 190465 190,465 100%

R REHS 08

Changsha ~ Dynasty Impression—Yuyuan 2001 21083 - - 43650 43650 100%

R REHSHE

Changsha ~ Hantang Royalty 203 40004 - - 608726 608726 4%

R Bty

Chongging  Boyun Mansion 2022 63610 = = 140,79 140,792 30%

S REN

Chongging ~ Xichen Yijing 2022 4170 - - 87,268 87,268 31%

&R BRE5

Chongging  Hanlin Tianchen 2003 90,075 - - 1853% 185,3% 30%

BF BHAR

Chongging Jiuzhu Tianchen 2023 136328 = = 292061 292,061 3%

EJ YERR

Others Other odd land reserves N/A N/A 494543 19,744 16912 531,200 N/A

£t EHEE LR TR TR ¥k

1,339,589 169154 18934770 20443513
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Investment and Operation of Commercial Properties

During the year, the Group achieved rental income of
approximately RMB56.4 million, representing an increase
of 38.9% compared to the same period of last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the additional rent from
commercial space of Nanning Dynasty Tiancheng Phases
I & Il. The Group has 10 commercial properties projects
mainly located in Xiamen, Fujian and Nanning, Guangxi
respectively.

Hotel Operation

During the year, the Group achieved sales revenue from
hotel operation business of approximately RMB47.8 million,
representing an increase of 37.6% compared to the same
period of last year. The increase was mainly attributable to
the improvement of performance of Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan

Jia Hotel and Nanning Dynasty Congyue Hotel.

Up to now, the Group has two hotels opened, namely
Xiamen Dynasty Ginlan Jia Hotel and Nanning Dynasty
Congyue Hotel.

Il. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
revenue amounted to approximately RMB10,588.4 million,
representing an increase of 30.6% from approximately
RMB8,108.0 million for the corresponding period last
year. The revenue mainly included income generated
from property sales, commercial property investment and
operations and hotel operations. In particular, revenue from
(i) property sales amounted to approximately RMB10,109.3
million, representing an increase of 30.1% as compared with
the corresponding period last year, and contributed 95.5%
of the total revenue recognised; (ii) provision of construction
services amounted to approximately RMB242.0 million,
representing an increase of 10.7% as compared with the
corresponding period last year; (iii) commercial property
investment and operations amounted to approximately
RMB56.4 million, representing an increase of 38.9% as
compared with the corresponding period last year; and
(iv) hotel operations amounted to approximately RMB47.8
million, representing an increase of 37.6% as compared with
the corresponding period last year.

EENEREREE

RER AEBERASBADARE
5648 87T - ML _E R HAE A138.9% o 1
MEBHREERBERR — R _HmE
EEMSHSMISERE - A5EEH
0EEEYEEER - TELEREREEM
MEFAEE -

R EE
RER - AEEBRAEELEEHHEEW
ABANR¥E478EE T - Mtk EFRIEAE
n37.6% o MPHEEHRREPIRESRE
EREEREEUBERRE MRS RA
HEAFTER o

BB ARBECHAMECHER
B DRIREFARESREENEERE
=UUEE -

— MK EE

1.

WA

HZE2020F12A31BIEFE - AEEKA
HARBE105884B BT - REAFREBLD
BARMES1080E & ITIBM30.6% © AR
BREEREMEHE  BEDERERK
EROBEEBBAE - Hh - (VR HE
FIEMAREFREEMI0IBENAR
1010938 BT - HERRMARER
95.5% i (IR ERBEAERAREER
BRI IN107% 2 X ARME24208 & T ¢ (i)
PR E REEFIRAREF R E
EIN38.9%EH BARES6ABETT 5 K(v)
B JE 48 & FT B AR 25 57 (R B 1137.6%49
BARB47SEETT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's cost of
sales amounted to approximately RMB7,892.5 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increased number of projects
delivered during the year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross
profit was approximately RMB2,695.9 million, representing
an increase of 23.4% from approximately RMB2,185.4 million
for the corresponding period of 2019. Such increase was
primarily attributable to the increased number of projects
delivered during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the gross profit margin was 25.5%, representing a
decrease from 27.0% for the corresponding period of
2019. Such decrease was mainly due to that the Company
delivered several property projects with higher gross profit
margin in 2019.

Selling and Marketing Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's selling
and marketing costs amounted to approximately RMB482.7
million, representing an increase of 8.7% from approximately
RMB444.2 million for the corresponding period last year.
Such increase was due to the launch of new property
projects of the Group for presale in 2020.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB522.2 million, representing an increase of 14.8% from
approximately RMB454.9 million for the corresponding
period last year. Such increase was mainly due to the
increased number of employees resulted from the Group's
business expansion.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures and Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's share
of losses of joint ventures and associates amounted to
approximately RMB45.7 million, representing a decrease
of RMB54.6 million from the share of profits of joint
ventures and associates of approximately RMB8.9 million
for the corresponding period last year. Such decrease was
attributable to the expenses incurred during the early
development stage in respect of several cooperation
projects under progress.

EEETWR D

THER A

REBREZE2020F12 8318 IEFERH
ERANGAEAREILRSEETT » BINER
RAEERFAXMNEBEZHHY -

ERMREFZER
NEBREE2020F12831B IEFEHNE
FHBARME 269598 BT + HH¥E20194F
EHEIZ A ANRE2,1854F B ITiBN23.4%
ENREAFZEAFARNEE LS
HZE20200F12A31BLEFENERERA
255% - 2019 AHARAI&27.0% + EFEEF
FriBE  Z TREERE2019FRARNT
AERSEMNENYEER -

HEREHBAX
HE20200F12A318LEFE - AEEHEE
MEHAIHAARB4IAEEL » BE
FRENBAREE4I442HE T ING7%
Ihig R 2 H N AN E B R 2020F # H M E
BB B EATER -

THFEX
HZE2020F12831HIEFE - AEETH
X BARESD2EET @ WEFERE
HEBAREAS40F ELILIN148% + 7238
MEZHERAEBEBKBETRABE TAK
EFHETER -

EhEEERBE NRXE

HZE2020F 12831 BILFE - AEBEEN
BECERBENRBBNAARE47H
B BREAFRPELEECERBER
AIAEOAEARKOAETT » MA546E
B RS RBERZEMEEEEER
FAEERR B AR A S A ATE B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFRE DM

Finance Costs - Net

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's net
finance costs amounted to approximately RMB19.6 million,
representing a decrease of 14.4% from approximately
RMB22.9 million for the corresponding period of 2019. Such
decrease was attributable to the increase in interest income
due to the increase in deposits.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's income
tax expense amounted to approximately RMB765.7 million,
representing a decrease of 1.9% from approximately
RMB780.5 million for the corresponding period last year.
The Group's income tax expense included the provision
for the corporate income tax and land appreciation tax
during the year. The slight decrease in income tax for the
year was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s land
appreciation tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the aforementioned factors, the Group's profit
before tax increased by 21.9% to approximately RMB1,715.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB1,407.9 million for the corresponding
period last year. The Group's net profit increased by 51.4%
to approximately RMB949.9 million (of which net profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
RMB715.4 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020
from approximately RMB627.4 million for the corresponding
period of 2019.

Ill. LIQUIDITY, FINANCE AND CAPITAL

1.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately RMB5.66 billion (as at 31 December
2019: approximately RMB4.10 billion), of which, restricted
bank balances amounted to approximately RMB2.20 billion
(as at 31 December 2019: RMB1.88 billion).

1.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Borrowings and Pledged Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total borrowings
(including interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings)
amounted to approximately RMB10.31 billion (as at 31
December 2019: approximately RMB7.77 billion).

As at 31 December 2020, assets with an aggregate value of
approximately RMB12.39 billion (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB11.63 billion) have been pledged to
banks and other financial institutions to secure the credit
facilities granted to the Group and its joint ventures and
associates.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net gearing ratio
(total borrowings less cash and bank balances divided by
total equity) was approximately 58.7%, as compared with
approximately 119.2% as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (total debts divided
by total assets) was approximately 83.2%, as compared with
approximately 91.7% as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's debt-to-asset ratio excluding
advances from customers (total debt excluding contract
liabilities divided by total assets excluding contract liabilities)
was approximately 77.7%, as compared with approximately
87.0% on 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.28 times, as compared
with approximately 1.18 times as at 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, cash to short-term debt ratio
(unrestricted cash and bank balances divided by short-term
borrowings) was approximately 1.30 times, as compared
with approximately 0.96 times as at 31 December 2019.

EEENWR DM
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Capital Commitment

As of 31 December 2020, the Group's contracted but
unprovided commitment payments for non-current assets
were approximately RMB40 million (as of 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB95 million).

Financial Guarantee

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, the banks require the
Group to provide guarantees to the purchasers in respect of
their mortgage loans. Such mortgage guarantees provided
to the purchasers are usually released when the title deeds
of the respective properties are pledged to the banks
as security to continue to support the mortgage loans,
which generally takes place after the delivery of relevant
properties to the purchasers. If the purchasers are in default
on their mortgage loans, the Group shall be liable to the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal amount
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by
the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group shall
be entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees of
approximately RMB12.08 billion to certain banks in respect
of the mortgage loans granted to certain purchasers of the
Group's properties (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
RMB10.45 billion).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees
of approximately RMB5.41 billion to related companies
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB3.63 billion).
These related companies are not controlled by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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IV. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER EER - HiER

INFORMATION

1. Material Acquisition and Disposal 1. ERWBREESEE
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any 20205124318 - NEE W EFEFE 1A
significant investments. For the year ended 31 December BEREE - HE2020F 128318 EFE -
2020, the Group did not have material acquisitions or AEBVHEEAERARBEXILSEWE L
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. A BERRREETE -

2. Employee and Remuneration Policy 2. EERFHMBE
As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 2,592 M2020F12H31H » AEEHEF2592%
employees. The remuneration of the employees of the Group BE - AEBEEE cHFMEZRIEMISR
is mainly determined based on the prevailing market level THMKE EERAFERERITEL
of remuneration and the individual performance and work BMAE REMIEZEERERTETE
experience of the employees. Bonuses are also distributed W AEEAREERHEBERRKE 2
based on the performance of the employees. The Group BEBBAFXERBARENEELSRIZM
provides employees with career development opportunities HEFMIREAR - AEEEMEN2E
and considers if their remuneration should be raised or if BEEN RFIEEIEE -
they should be promoted with reference to their individual
performance and potential. Other benefits provided by the
Group include medical benefits and specialised training
schemes.

3. Use of Proceeds from the IPO 3. REEBR L AHBREESEELAR
The Company's net proceeds from the global offering are RAEBRIRBEEMSRIEFEL149E8
approximately HK$1.49 billion, excluding the net proceeds T NERERE MRS TEBRERR
from the partial exercise of the over-allotment option which BERFTBRIAFRE - BEARSHE - K
took place after the reporting period. As of the date of this AEIEEAAAE2020F 11 A27BNBRE
report, the Company has applied the balance of proceeds BIERERDFEEHCAZERAES
raised from the global offering in accordance with the HEBEEEEMGHRIEHE -

proposed applications as disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 27 November 2020 (the “Prospectus”).
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The following table sets out the utilisation of the net

proceeds up to 31 December 2020 and the breakdown of

the proposed utilisation:

TREDFTERIEFEEE2020F12 831
BB ABR R ES B

Utilised Unutilised
amount amount Expected
up to as of timeline for
Net proceeds 31 December 31 December usage of
from the IPO 2020 2020 proceeds
HZE20205F #HZE2020F
BRABBEH 12A31H 12A318 BAMRERE
Purpose k=S BREFE CHASE XDASE MNEHANERX
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEET BEET BEET
Construction costs for RBYEMREIR 951 951 = =
existing property B BB EERL AR
development projects
Repayment of partial BEBHEAS 384 145 239 First half of 2021
existing interest-bearing  BIRTTER 20214 EH5F
bank borrowings
General working capital —REEES 158 158 = =
Total 5T 1,493 1,254 239
Subsequent Events &SR

On 6 January 2021, ICBC International Capital Limited, the

Sponsor of the Public Offering, partially exercised the over-
allotment right and allotted and issued 30,144,000 additional
shares at price of HKS$4.56 per share. The net proceeds

from the partial exercise of the over-allotment right were

approximately HK$135.4 million. The net proceeds will be

utilised in accordance with the proposed application as

disclosed in the Prospectus.

Dividend Distribution

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of

RMB11 cents (equivalent to HK$13 cents) per share.

20211 A6 » RAZEENREBALIR
EREBRAREDITEBEL SR
W 12 B AR 4.567%8 7T Bl 3 2 8£9730,144,000%
BEOMNRD o B 1T B S A FTE K
SRR 354187870 - FTIS IR FREAS IR I
BRERMERHRERLZDA -

iz Sk 2
EZeRFRERAREREBRAREN
2 GRER13EAL)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Any of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the period from 11 December 2020 (i.e. the date
when the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange) (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2020, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Currency Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority of
the Group's transactions were denominated and settled in
RMB. The Group was not subject to any material risk directly
relating to foreign exchange fluctuation. The management
will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure,
and take prudent measure to reduce foreign exchange risks.
The Company does not engage in any hedging activities in
relation to the foreign currency risk.

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to implementing high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Group and enhance the corporate value
as well as the responsibility commitments. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”") as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as

the code of corporate governance.

The Group has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the CG Code. To the knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in the CG Code from the Listing Date to 31 December
2020, and the Directors will use their best endeavors to
procure the Group to continue to comply with the CG Code.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”") of the Company
is proposed to be held on 13 May 2021.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 10 May 2021 to 13 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All transfer documents of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 7 May 2021.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the AGM, the final
dividend will be paid on or about 30 June 2021. In order to
determine the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2021 to 27 May 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
all transfer documents of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on 21 May 2021.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2020.

10.

11.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Review of Annual Results

The Board of Directors has established its audit committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of our audit committee
are to review and monitor the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control system, to
oversee the audit process, to provide recommendation
and advice to the Board, and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board. Our
audit committee consists of three members, including
Mr. QU Wenzhou, Ms. XIN Zhu and Mr. TAM Chi Choi. Our
audit committee is chaired by Mr. QU Wenzhou, who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

Our audit committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and confirmed that it has complied
with all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. Our audit
committee has also discussed the matters of audit and

financial reporting.

12.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report for the year ended
31 December 2020.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
on 14 December 2018. Shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December
2020 (the “Listing Date”).

MAIN BUSINESS

The Group is a property developer in China focusing on the development
of residential and commercial properties in selected economic regions.
The Group has expanded its business into mainly six economic regions in
China, including the Western Taiwan Strait Economic Region, Beibu Gulf
Region and Neighboring Cities, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, Midstream
Parts of the Yangtze River Region, Yangtze River Delta Region and
Chengdu-Chongging Region.

Details of the main business of the key subsidiaries of the Group are set
out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
this annual report. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the nature
of the main business of the Group has no significant changes. As of the
date of this annual report, the Board has no intention to significantly

change the main business of the Group.
RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the

Group in this annual report.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review and future business development are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY THE
GROUP

Our operations involve certain risks, some of which are beyond our
control. These risks can be broadly categorized into: (i) risks relating to
our business, (ii) risks relating to the real estate industry, and (iii) risks
relating to doing business in China.

Some of the risks generally associated with our business and industry
include the following:

i. we are susceptible to adverse movements in the PRC real estate
market, particularly in regions and cities where we have property
development projects.

ii. we are vulnerable to adverse changes in economic, political and

social conditions and government policies in China.

iii. we may not have adequate financing to fund our property
development projects, and capital sources may not be available
on favorable terms, or at all.

iv. we rely on contractors during the construction and development
stages of our property development projects, who may not

perform in accordance with our expectations.

V. we may fail to protect our intellectual property rights, which may

materially and adversely affect our brand value.

For further details on the major risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” on pages 37
to 77 of the Company's prospectus dated 27 November 2020 (the
"Prospectus”).
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SOCIAL,HEALTH AND WORKSAFETY,ENVIRONMENTAL
MATTERS, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND COMPLIANCE

Social, Health and Work Safety

In respect of social responsibilities, in particular health, work safety and
social insurance, we have entered into employment contracts with our
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations.
We maintain social welfare insurance for our full-time employees in
the PRC, including pension insurance, medical insurance, occupational
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance, in

accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Our Employee's Administrative Measures (8 TEIE##7%) contain
policies and procedures regarding work safety and occupational health
issues. We provide our employees with necessary safety training, and our
construction sites are equipped with safety equipment including gloves,
boots and hats. Our human resources department and administrative
department are responsible for recording and handling work accidents
as well as maintaining health and work safety compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we did not encounter any
material safety accident, there were no material claims for personal or
property damages, and no compensation was paid to employees in
respect of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accident.

Environmental Matters
We are subject to a number of environmental and safety laws and
regulations in the PRC including the Environmental Protection Law of
(h#EARKEMBIRRIREE) ), the
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (P #E AR LMBIRIERE T LDIAE)
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China

HMBEREZEFNEZE) )
Environmental Protection for Development Projects (

REEIRIRDI) ).

the People’s Republic of China (

), the Environmental
({PEA
and the Administrative Regulations on
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Pursuant to these laws and regulations, depending on the impact of
the project on the environment, an environmental impact study report,
an environmental impact analysis table or an environmental impact
registration form shall be submitted by a developer before the relevant
authorities will grant approval for the commencement of construction
of the property development. In addition, upon completion of the
property development, the relevant environmental authorities and the
construction unit will also inspect the property to ensure compliance
with the applicable environmental standards and regulations before the
property can be delivered to the purchasers.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not encounter any
major issues in the process of completing the real estate development
project and passing the inspection and acceptance of the relevant
environmental agencies. The Group has also not been subject to
significant fines or penalties for violating the environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 thereto,
the Company's environmental, social and governance report will be
available on our website and on the Stock Exchange’s website within
three months from the publication of this report.

Legal Proceedings and Compliance

We have been involved in legal proceedings or disputes in the ordinary
course of business, including, but not limited to, claims relating to
disputes with our suppliers and disputes arising from property purchase
agreements with our customers. Please refer to “Risk Factors — Risks
Relating to Our Business — We may be involved in claims, disputes,
legal proceedings and negative publicity, which may adversely affect
our financial condition, divert management attention and harm our

reputation” in the Prospectus.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we were not involved in any
litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings, claims or disputes
which had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results

of operation.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

For the businesses and industries in which the Group operates, the most
important laws and regulations in the PRC include (but not limited to)
laws related to the establishment of real estate development enterprises,
acquisition of land use rights, property development, commercial

housing sales or pre-sales, and environmental protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except as disclosed in the
Prospectus, we had complied with all the relevant and applicable PRC
laws and regulations governing the business of property development
and management in all material respects, and we had obtained all
material licenses, permits and certificates for the purpose of operating
our business.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has no non-compliance
incident that have had a material adverse effect on the Company.

Financial Summary

The summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 are set
out on page 268 of this annual report.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Final Dividend

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of RMB11 cents (equivalent
to HK$13 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
shareholders listed on the register of members of the Company at the
end of business hours on 27 May 2021 (Thursday).

If the resolution regarding the proposed final dividend has been
approved at the annual general meeting, the proposed final dividend
will be paid on or before 30 June 2021 (Wednesday).
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Permitted Indemnity and Insurance Provisions

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out his/her functions.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has arranged
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of legal

action against Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers
The Group primarily target individuals and companies of residential
properties and tenants of investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 2% of the revenue of the Group, and all of them
are independent third parties to us.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest in
any of the five largest customers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest suppliers of the
Group, primarily comprising construction contractors, accounted for
32% of the total purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for 11% of the total purchases of the Group. All
of the five largest suppliers are all construction companies engaged by

the Group and all of them are independent third parties to the Group.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder who owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest
in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing long-term
relationships with stakeholders.

We consider our employees are key contributors to our growth and that
our success and ability to maintain our competitiveness depend on the
well-being, performance and skills of our staff. For example, we offer
leadership training programs to our mid-level and senior management
and we sponsor selected employees to attend EMBA program at Xiamen
University. We also provide regular training programs, such as the Seal
Training Program (8 %915 #lI51£l) for entry-level employees, Star Training
Program (2 & F 15351 2l) for our entry-to-mid-level employees with
outstanding work performance and Dynasty Iron Army Program (K&
2 5) for sales and marketing personnel.

The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting diversity
development to our staff, providing competitive remuneration and
benefits and career development opportunities based on their merits and
performance. The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate
trainings and development resources to the employees so that they can
keep abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry,

and improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.
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The Company understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers. The Group has established procedures
in place for handling customers’ complaints and customer satisfaction
surveys in order to ensure customers' complaints are dealt with in a

prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies and timely
delivery of materials. The Group reinforces business partnerships with
suppliers and contractors by recurring communication in proactive and
effective manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group in this annual report.

Equity
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are set out in note
29 to the consolidated balance sheet of the Group in this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the changes in the Group’s reserves for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves
As of 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
were approximately RMB1,987.5 million.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings as of 31 December
2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated balance sheet of the
Group in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Directors of the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Di

Mr. Hao Shengchun
Mr. Tang Guozhong
Ms. Zhang Jianhua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qu Wenzhou (Appointed on 20 November 2020)
Ms. Xin Zhu (Appointed on 20 November 2020)
Mr. Tam Chi Choi (Appointed on 20 November 2020)

In accordance with Article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Wu Di, Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr. Tang Guozhong, Ms.
Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi
shall retire as Directors at the AGM. Mr. Wu Di, Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr.
Tang Guozhong, Ms. Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and
Mr. Tam Chi Choi being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from the date of his/her appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board and the nomination committee have
assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent
non-executive Directors are considered to be independent pursuant to

the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has been a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020 or at any
time during the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, was entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group, or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 44 and note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report, respectively.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments nor has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY ORITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the “Securities and Futures Ordinance”,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”")) which were required
to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were otherwise required, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out below:
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Interests in shares of the Company (Long position)

Approximate percentage

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
E=pE EEME R B E RERLBEME
Wu Di' Controlled corporation 212,121,000 15.91%
R REHDEE
Hao Shengchun? Controlled corporation 2,000,000 0.15%
MEsE EEHEE
Tang Guozhong? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.075%
& B > REGDEE
Zhang Jianhua? Controlled corporation 1,000,000 0.075%
SRR REHDEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 1,333,400,000 Shares.

Notes:

1. These Shares are owned by Mr. Wu Di through his wholly-owned
company, MeiDi Investment Holding Limited (“MeiDi"). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu Di is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MeiDi.

2. Tangjia Real Estate Management Co., Limited (“Tangjia") is owned as to

20% by Mr. Hao Shengchun, and 10% by each of Ms. Zhang Jianhua and
Mr. Tang Guozhong. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hao Shengchun,
Mr. Tang Guozhong and Ms. Zhang Jianhua is deemed to be interested
in the 2,000,000, 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 Shares held by Tangjia.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this annual report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the Directors to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2020, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying

Shares of the Company:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest
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Approximate percentage

Number of Shares of shareholding

BRoHEE8 BEME R B E RESLBEME

Xiamen ITG Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Beneficial owner 82,501,000 6.19%
EFBEEREEGRAR EnEEAA Long position
Ha

Chongging International Trust Co,, Trustee 82,501,000 6.19%
Ltd.* Long position
BEERBREFERNERAT E7EA "R
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Approximate percentage
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding
BROKSE£B BEMEE RIDEE RESABHLL
Dynasty International Co. Ltd. Beneficial owner 727,273,000 54.54%
REBBRER AR B A Long position
("Dynasty Cook”)! e )
50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KR
Dynasty International Holding Co., Ltd. Controlled corporation 727,273,000 54.54%
(‘Dynasty Cayman”) RiEHEE Long position
HR
50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB
Good First International Holding Controlled corporation 727,273,000 54.54%
Limited (“Good First HK")! SIEHEE Long position
RIEEFZERER AR ey}
GEEECN
50,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB
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Approximate percentage

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Number of Shares of shareholding

BRGHEEB BEMEE RIDEE REMY B0

Good First Holding Limited Controlled corporation 777,879,000 58.34%
("Good First BVI")"2 ZAEHEE Long position
e

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
HE

Wong Hei (“Ms. Wong")':2 Controlled corporation 777,879,000 58.34%
= ([EL )2 SRS EE Long position
"R

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

MeiDi Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner 212,121,000 15.91%
EHIREERER A A BB A Long position
HE

ICBC International Securities Limited®>  Beneficial owner 17,053,000 1.28%
THREIRESBR A BB A Long position
HE

Underwriter 50,010,000 3.75%
B Long position
"R

5,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB
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Name of Shareholders

Nature of Interest

Number of Shares

Approximate percentage
of shareholding

BRGHEEB EEME RIDEE REMY B0

ICBC International Holdings Limited? Controlled corporation 67,063,000 5.03%
TREIFR IR B R A ) ZEHEE Long position
e

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

Central Huijin Investment Ltd? Controlled corporation 69,876,000 5.24%
FRESREBRETARS SRS EE Long position
"R

50,010,000 3.75%
Short position
KRB

Industrial and Commercial Bank of Controlled corporation 69,876,000 5.24%
China Limited? RS EE Long position
PEITRERITRD AR AR 5=y

50,010,000 3.75%

Short position

NN
KB



As at 31 December 2020, the Company issued 1,333,400,000 Shares.

Notes:

Dynasty Cook is owned (i) as to 41.67% by Dynasty Cayman, which is in
turn owned as to 70% by Good First HK and 30% by Good First BVI; and
(i) 58.33% by Good First HK. Good First HK is wholly owned by Good
First BVI, a company wholly-owned by Ms. Wong. By virtue of the SFO,
each of Dynasty Cook, Dynasty Cayman, Good First HK, Good First BVI
and Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares

in which Dynasty Cook is interested in.

Fujia Group Holdings Limited (“Fujia”) is wholly-owned by Good First BVI,
which is in turn wholly owned by Ms. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Good First BVI and Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same

number of Shares in which Fujia is interested in.

According to the disclosure of interest forms ("Dl form(s)”) both dated 6
January 2021 filed by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. and Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited in relation to the relevant event on
31 December 2020, Central Huijin Investment Ltd. through Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited, ICBC International Holdings
Limited and ICBC International Securities Limited was interested in
69,876,000 Shares (long position) and 50,010,000 Shares (short position),
which includes unlisted derivatives of 19,866,000 Shares (long position).
According to the DI forms filed by ICBC International Securities Limited
and ICBC International Holdings Limited dated 28 December 2020,
each of which was interested in 67,063,000 Shares (long position) and
50,010,000 Shares (short position) including unlisted derivatives of
50,010,000 Shares (long position). There are no DI forms filed by them

in relation to the relevant event on 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as

at 31 December 2020, the Company is not aware of any persons (other

than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest

or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company

that were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listing securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Ms. Wong Hei, the controlling shareholder of the Company, has entered
into the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
dated 20 November 2020 in favor of our Company, pursuant to which,
Ms. Wong has undertaken that, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, she
will not, and will procure her close associates (other than members of
our Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved or engaged in any
business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes,
or may compete, with our business, or hold shares or interest in any
companies or business that competes directly or indirectly with the
business engaged by our Group from time to time, except where Ms.
Wong and her close associates hold less than 10% of the total issued
share capital or registered capital of any company which is engaged in
any business that is or may be in competition with any business engaged
by any member of our Group and they do not control the composition
of the board of directors of such companies at any time.

The Deed of Non-Competition will lapse automatically if (@) Ms. Wong
and her close associates cease to hold, whether directly or indirectly, 30%
or above of our Shares with voting rights or securities or other interests;
or (b) our Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

For details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-
Competition” on pages 318 to 327 in the Prospectus.
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For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, Ms. Wong
or her close associates did not refer any business opportunities related
to restricted business to the Company.

Annual Review

The Company has received the written confirmation letter from Ms. Wong
regarding compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed
of Non-Competition and are satisfied that Ms. Wong and her close
associates have complied with their undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Wu Di, our executive Director, has interests in Xiamen Gefusite Real
Estate Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Gefusite”) and Fuxin Group Co., Ltd. ("Fuxin
Group”). The table below sets forth Mr. Wu's shareholding in and the
business scope of each of Xiamen Gefusite and Fuxin Group:

Company name
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Shareholding structure
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Business scope

e

Xiamen Gefusite Indirectly owned as to 82% by Mr. Wu

=PI AR H MR AR ER82%

Fuxin Group Directly owned as to 10% by Mr. Wu and 1.96% by
a company controlled by Mr. Wu

BEEE FRSEEE YA 10%A & B R 5t FTiEfila) —

fE A BlHEE 1.96%

Although there is overlap between the business of Xiamen Gefusite and
our Group, having taking into account that (a) substantially all of the
properties developed by Xiamen Gefusite have been completed and
delivered; and (b) Mr. Wu has undertaken to procure Xiamen Gefusite
not to engage in property development business in the future, our
Directors are of the view that no material competition exists between

Xiamen Gefusite and our Group.

Xiamen Gefusite is engaged in the property
development in Xiamen, Fujian Province. The
property projects developed by Xiamen Gefusite
have been completed and delivered.

EriFRAT R A BT R ERE - B
PIRiB TR PR M E IR B B R TR -

Fuxin Group is an investment holding company
in the PRC. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report and the Prospectus, none of the
controlling shareholders of the Company or the Directors was engaged
or had interest in any business, apart from the business of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions between the Group and certain connected persons of
the Group have become continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Set forth below are the details of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group since the Listing Date
and up till the date of this annual report, which were exempted from
the requirements of independent shareholders’ approval, but subject
to the reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1. Architectural Design Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang Real Estate Group Co.,
Ltd. ("Xiamen Datang”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into an architectural design services framework
agreement (the "Design Services Framework Agreement”) with
Xiamen Yingzao Design Co,, Ltd. (BPI& &2 ERABREA

("Xiamen Design”), pursuant to which Xiamen Design agreed to
provide architectural design services, including but not limited to
concept design, construction documentation, and landscaping
design (the “Architectural Design Services”) to our Group for
a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2022. Our Directors are of the view that Xiamen Design has
adequate resources to fund its business operations and provide
Architectural Design Services based on the cooperation history
with Xiamen Design since 2013. We will endeavor to seek
quotations from at least three qualified independent architectural
design service providers and will only engage Xiamen Design as
the service provider if the price and quality of the Architectural
Design Services are comparable to or more favorable to our
Group than those offered by the independent service providers.
The service fees to be charged for the Architectural Design
Services shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the prevailing market price for similar services
in the open market and the anticipated costs of Xiamen Design.
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The maximum annual service fees in relation to the Architectural
Design Services to be provided under the Design Services
Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB4.8 million, RMB8.1
million and RMB10.3 million, respectively. Such estimation is
based on: (i) the number of current projects for which we have
engaged Xiamen Design to provide the Architectural Design
Services; (ii) the historical transaction amounts in particular,
the actual transaction amount for the six months ended 30
June 2020; (iii) the total GFA of properties of our Group which
required Architectural Design Services; and (iv) the expected
increase in number of projects and GFA of our properties which
required Architectural Design Services after taking into account
our business development plan for each of the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022.

The Design Services Framework Agreement is a framework
agreement which provides the mechanism for the operation
of the connected transactions between our Group and Xiamen
Design. It is envisaged that from time to time and as required,
individual service agreements may be required to be entered
into between our Group and Xiamen Design. Each individual
service agreement will set out the scope of services to be
provided by Xiamen Design to our Group. The individual
service agreements may only contain provisions which are in
all material respects consistent with the binding principles,
guidelines, terms and conditions set out in the Design Services
Framework Agreement. As the individual service agreements are
simply further elaborations on the services contemplated by the
Design Services Framework Agreement, they do not constitute
new categories of connected transactions as far as Listing Rules
are concerned. Xiamen Design is owned as to 70% by Xiamen
Chengxin Design Consulting Co., Ltd. (EFIERTFHEAAB
R 2 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen Xindi, which is
indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling Shareholder.
As such, Xiamen Design is a connected person of our Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Design Services Framework Agreement
will constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.

ABEBRRERAT . —T-DEER

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

HE2020F - 2021F K2022F 12 H31HILEE
BFE - ARERBBRETTRBIER B HIGIEE
HEERFTRBENNESFERBEEE S B
THAARKEKISEET ARBIBETLEA
RE¥1038 8T - BEAMFTTER : ‘ﬁ1Fﬁ§H%
EP TR R RGO BIER &8 (
BER S - LHEEZE202066H SOElJJ:/\
EAANERR 55 ; (iii)ﬁﬁl*a’ﬁ RERETR
TR E R B REEE - (V& E EEZE2020
F ~2021¢&2022¢12ﬂ31 Etif%iﬂ@%
BEREE BT ERERTRBENIER
HEREMMERLEEMBENILM -

Rt IRBERGZ S —DIERGE - REASK
BB FRTETHEXSHEFEKS - BH

REBEEBEFIRFE TR RIERTEF L EFR
R W= - B EBNRGHESERIIEFIR
I mAEBREORGEER - EBORBGH
ENERSEMAEANSAERARISIELED
BT RARE - 8] - ERREHF—
E’JMK BN B R AR & E AR T IRISAE
BipzIR THHETIRBRE—SHA - L
MRS -%Z%Ti%ammﬂ%ﬁk%ﬁ*ﬁﬁuﬁ’aﬁﬁx
G o JEF‘EJ%&‘EJrBaEF%E%%&m AERA
HH70% - MEFIRERTERBRA Tz%f
PIEME2EMB AR - EFYEHARMZER
R E L T REES - BEPIRET B LR R
MERAARAAIMEEATLT - At - FRETIRBIE
B RETRETOR IR LSBT
HRAETHAZE T AR RINFERERS -

63



64

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED « Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

As some of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profit ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual
caps in relation to the Design Service Framework Agreement are
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, such transactions will constitute continuing connected
transactions of our Company that will be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
will be exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2020 amounted to RMB3.3 million.

Property Management Services

On 20 November 2020, Xiamen Datang (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management
services agreement (the “Master Property Management Services
Agreement”) with Xiamen Tangren Property Management
Co, Lid. (EFIEAWEEERBR AR (‘Tangren Property”)
pursuant to which we agreed to engage Tangren Property
and its subsidiaries (“Tangren Group”) to provide property
management and related services, including but not limited
to (i) pre-delivery services and property management services
for unsold properties owned by us; (ii) house inspection and
cleaning services; and (iii) display units and on-site sales office
management services (the “Property Management Services”) for
aterm commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.
Our Directors are of the view that Tangren Group has adequate
resources to fund its business operations and provide Property
Management Services based on the cooperation history with
Tangren Group since 2010. The service fees to be charged for
the Property Management Services shall be determined with
reference to a number of factors, including (i) the total GFA
of the property development projects of which such Property
Management Services is required; (i) the anticipated operational
costs (including labor costs, material costs and administrative
costs); and (i) the prevailing market price for similar services
and similar type of projects and shall be no less favorable than
those quoted by independent third parties to us.
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The maximum annual service fees in relation to the Property
Management Services to be provided under the Master Property
Management Services Agreement for each of the years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 will not exceed RMB66.4
million, RMB92.6 million and RMB121.0 million, respectively.
Such estimation is based on: (i) the number of current property
projects for which we have engaged Tangren Group to provide
the Property Management Services; (i) the historical transaction
amounts for the Track Record Period; (iii) the increase in GFA of
new properties which will require pre-delivery services in 2020
as compared to 2019, which has been estimated based on the
GFA of properties delivered by us and managed by Tangren
Group as of 30 June 2020. In addition, we estimate that the GFA
of new properties which will require such services will continue
to increase for each of the years ending 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022. According to our business development plan,
we anticipate to complete 8, 8, and 10 projects for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022; and (iv)
the increase of number of property projects to be pre-sold by
us and the corresponding number of display units and sales
office which we will engage Tangren Group for the provision
of on-site management services for each of the years ending
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022. We plan to operate a total
of 23, 30 and 37 sales offices for such projects developed or to
be developed for the three years ending 31 December 2022,
respectively. For each of the sales offices, we normally built up
two to three display units. The Master Property Management
Services Agreement is a framework agreement which provides
the mechanism for the operation of the connected transaction
between our Group and Tangren Group. It is envisaged that
from time to time and as required, individual service agreements
may be required to be entered into between our Group and
Tangren Group. Each individual service agreement will set out
the scope of Property Management Services to be provided by
Tangren Group to our Company, the fees for the services to be
paid by our Company and any detailed specifications which
may be relevant to those engagements. The individual service
agreements may only contain provisions which are in all material
respects consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms
and conditions set out in the Master Property Management
Services Agreement. Tangren Property is directly owned as to
75% by Xiamen Xindi Group Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Xindi") and 25% by
Xiamen Fuxin Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Fuxin”). Xiamen Xindi

ABEBRRERAT . —T-DEER

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

B E2020F - 2021 F K2022F 12 A3 HILEE
EF - BHERBEMEETERBHEGREM
HMEEERBHERFERBEK T BBAA
R¥ec4BET ARERBETLEARKE
1210887 - BEMETHIER - OVRMEEE
FEAEEREYESTERENREMETEE &
B (WVHERSAMNBERZ ST ; (i)i2020
FRFERXNARENFTVENREDER
2019F B FTE N » WL HER KB ZE 202056
A3 0BRNUAEBEEASBEEENYEANRE
EEMET o BEoh - FPEEHEIZE 20205 ~ 2021
FR202FNANBLEFESFHFTEE@R
R ENELEABEGEEILM - BRIEHM
REBERETE - RMBEFEEZE20204F
2021 R2022F 12A3MBLE=ZAFEZF -
i SEASME ~ 8@ X I10MEIEE : M(iv)&E £2020
F 2021 FER202F12A3BIEFERE - &
MKEENYEEEHE UARKMBEZERE A
SEIRHIRIS TR R A AR M R EE R/ E
FESE LM - HMIFTEB R ABEE202F12A8
BNEE=AFERERBERENZEEE D
RIFHI23ME - 30MER37EEERE - YREEE
R BRMEFTEREME=—EARRE - £
MEEERBHRA/IERGZ  HAEAEENR
EASEBEEITEEISHNEEKS - Bt RS
BEHEASES TR RIEHRTER 7 EBNRE
W& - BHEBNRBHESSINEASE R
MARRRENVESERSEE - AQF)H
SNMRGE R EZEREREO TR

65



66

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED « Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

is owned as to 95.5% by Fuxin Group, which is in turn owned as
to 51.03% by Ms. Wong. Xiamen Fuxin is owned as to 51.26% by
Xiamen Xindi, and 48.74% by Good First Group, which is in turn
owned as to 90% by Ms. Wong. Accordingly, Tangren Property
is indirectly owned as to approximately 53.76% by Ms. Wong,
and thus indirectly controlled by Ms. Wong, our Controlling
Shareholder. As such, Tangren Property is a connected person of
our Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Master Property Management Services
Agreement will constitute continuing connected transactions
for our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing. As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual
caps in relation to the Master Property Management Services
Agreement is expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%
on an annual basis, such transactions will constitute continuing
connected transactions for our Company that will be subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but will be exempted from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The actual transaction amount of the foregoing transactions in
2020 amounted to RMB62.1 million.

Annual Review

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing

Rules and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the independent auditor of the Company, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. The copy of the independent auditor's letter provided by the
auditor to the Company has been submitted to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company’s

auditor confirmed that:

a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company's board of directors;

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,

in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2020 is contained in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved a share option scheme (the “Share Option

Scheme”) on 20 November 2020, the summary of principal terms of

which is as follows:

(a)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared
in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
had or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the

following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.
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Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the

following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or

officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(if) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,

distributors and such other persons who, in the sole

opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed

to our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Consideration of options granted
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00

to our Company by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering, being 133,340,000
Shares (represents approximately 9.78% as at the date of this
annual report), excluding for this purpose Shares which would
have been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any
other share option schemes of our Company).
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Maximum number of options granted

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share

Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our

Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)

to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the

date of grant shall not exceed 1% of our Shares in issue as at

the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this

1% limit shall be subject to:

(@)

theissue of a circular by our Company to our Shareholders
which small comply with Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of
the Listing Rules and/or such other requirements as
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
The circular to be issued by our Company shall contain
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant), the information
as required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer
required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(or his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if
the Eligible Participant is a core connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
The numbers and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must be
fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date of
the Board meeting at which the Board proposes to grant
the options to such Eligible Participant shall be taken
as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the

subscription price of our Shares.
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Granting options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of our Company or any of their

respective associates

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to
grant options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive Director (or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) which will result in the number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, canceled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of our Shares in issue on the date of
offer of the option; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of our Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of such grant, in excess
of HKS5 million or such other sum as may be from time
to time provided under the Listing Rules. Such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee,
his/her associates and all core connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favor, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of
such options shall be taken as a poll.
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Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share

Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may
be granted more than 10 years after the Listing Date. Subject
to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the Listing Date.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of our Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(if) the average of the official closing prices of our Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, no option had been granted

or agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company

and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date

prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
and other donations in a total amount of approximately RMB10 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2021, ICBC International Capital Limited, the Sponsor of the
Public Offering, partially exercised the over-allotment right and allotted
and issued 30,144,000 additional shares at price of HK$4.56 per share.
The net proceeds from the partial exercise of the over-allotment right
were approximately HK$135.4 million. The net proceeds will be utilised in
accordance with the proposed application as disclosed in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant events after the
end of the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this

annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this

annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has audited the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,

and will retire at the annual general meeting.
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Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting. There was no change of the auditor of
the Company from the Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board
Datang Group Holdings Limited
Mr. Wu Di

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions stated
in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules since the Listing Date. The Company is committed to the
view that the Board should include a balanced composition of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors so that there is a
strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with all applicable provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wu Di (chairman of the Board), Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr.
Tang Guozhong and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam
Chi Choi. An updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company,
respectively. Their names and biographical details are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report. The
overall management and supervision of the Company’s operation and
the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board. There is no financial, business, family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.

During the the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020,
the Board has at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The three
independent non-executive Directors represent more than one-third
of the Board, complying with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive directors of a listed
issuer must represent at least one-third of the board. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safequard the
interest of Shareholders.
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitor the performance of the senior executives. The Directors have
to make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the
date of this report, the Board comprised seven Directors, including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Names and biographical details are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

MEMBERS OF OUR BOARD

Date of joining

EEEE
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Date of

appointmentas Roles and

Name Age Existing position  the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE i RAERK MAXEBEZE ZEEZH AEREME
Mr. Wu Di 55  Executive Director, 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
Rk chairman of the 2011418228 20185124148 development and major

Board
WITES - =fF

Mr. Hao Shengchun 46
MEBELE

Executive Director 22 January 2011

and president 20114F1 A22H

WITESREH

business decisions of the Group
BEASENBRERERNLE
REBRE

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

Responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development,
operational planning and daily
operation of the Group

BB BB AN EE R AR AR 3
R ESHERAEES

Mr. Tang Guozhong 46
fEBIgE S

Ms. Zhang Jianhua 68
REEL L

Executive Director
and joint
company
secretary

HITESR®

FEANCIE

Executive Director

HITES

22 January 2011
20114E1 A 22H

22 January 2011
20114E1 A22H

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

11 November 2019
201911 A11H

Responsible for securities
management, risk management
and public relations
management of the Group

BEAEEESERE  RARER
RAFBRER

Responsible for human resources
management of the Group

BEAKBANERER
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Date of

appointmentas  Roles and

Name Age Existing position  the Group Director responsibilities
BEER
HE Fir BRAERK MAXEBzH EEZH AEREE
Mr. Qu Wenzhou 48  Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
JESUM A& executive Director 20209F11 8208 20204118208 independent advice on the
B IEMITES operations and management of
the Group
BEMARENKLE REEBRM
BIER
Ms. Xin Zhu 52 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing
FIRL T executive Director 2020811 H208 2020911 H20H independent advice on the
BYIFRITES operations and management of
the Group
BEMAEENKE RERRH
BUER
Mr. Tam Chi Choi 56 Independent non- 20 November 2020 20 November 2020 Responsible for providing

BESEE

executive Director

B IFFWITES

20204F11 H20H

The roles of the chairman and the president of the Company have be

separated pursuant to the CG Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate

Governance Code, Mr. Wu Di served as the chairman of the Company

and Mr. Hao Shengchun served as the president of the Company (the

"President”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

202011 H20H independent advice on the

operations and management of

the Group
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BN ER
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Liability insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company
is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The Board
also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will review
the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they

remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are published in a timely
manner. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the
Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. The functions of independent
non-executive Directors include bringing an impartial view and judgment
on issues of the Company’s strategies, performance and control; and
scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring performance

reporting.
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All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have made positive contributions to the development of the Company
through providing their professional advice to the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has provided an annual written
confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits

of diversity on the Board.
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As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven members,
including one female executive Director and one female independent
non-executive Director. The Directors also have a balanced mix of
knowledge, skills and experience, including property development,
overall business management, finance and investment. They obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, civil
engineering, international finance, physics, accounting and law. The
Board has three independent non-executive Directors with different
industry backgrounds, representing more than one-third of the Board
members. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from
45 years old to 68 years old. The Company has taken and will continue to
take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Group, including
but without limitation at the Board and senior management levels.
Taking into account the business model of the Group and its specific
needs as well as the presence of two female Directors out of a total of
seven Board members, the Directors consider that the composition of
the Board satisfies the board diversity policy.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the board diversity policy
further provides that the Board shall take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The
Group will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting
staff at mid to senior level so that it will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board going forward. It
is the objective of the Company to maintain an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices.

The nomination committee of the Company is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of the Board members and compliance with relevant codes
governing board diversity under the Listing Rules. The nomination
committee of the Company will review the board diversity policy and its
diversity profile from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with the
Company for a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Articles of Association
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
in the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her
appointment or as an additional member of the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The members of the Company may, at any general meetings
convened and held in accordance with the Articles of Association, by
ordinary resolution remove a Director at any time before the expiration
of his/her period of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
the Articles of Association or in any agreement between the Company
and such Director (but without prejudice to any claim for damages
under any such agreement).

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment. Subsequently, the Directors
will receive updates on the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the latest development of the Group’s business and are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and prior to the Listing, all of the Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Di
(chairman of the Board), Mr. Hao Shengchun, Mr. Tang Guozhong, Ms.
Zhang Jianhua, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi
participated in a training session conducted by Sidley Austin, the legal
adviser of the Company as to Hong Kong laws, on directors’ duties,
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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The Company will arrange regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. Pursuant to the requirements
of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code, all
Directors have provided the Company with records of the training they
received to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed

and relevant.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Directors
may participate in meetings either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Board holds at least four meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Additional meetings would be
arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting is decided
in advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person.
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Attendance Record of Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held 2 Board
meetings, one for appoitment of independent non-executive Directors
with all executive Directors attending the meeting, and another for
consideration and approval of relevant listing documents and steps
adopted for the listing of the Company (and its sudsidiaries) on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with all Directors
(including executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors)
attending the meeting. The table below sets out the details of attendance
of these Board meetings:
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Number of Board Meetings
held/attendance

Name of Director EEEE EESRRETAE HE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wu Di Rt 2/2
Mr. Hao Shengchun e 2/2
Mr. Tang Guozhong EESE A 2/2
Ms. Zhang Jianhua REFEL T 2/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIkHTES

(appointed on 20 November 2020) (7202011 B20 B EEE)
Mr. Qu Wenzhou JESUM A& 1/1
Ms. Xin Zhu FRL L 1/1
Mr. Tam Chi Choi el s 1/1

No general meeting was held since the Listing Date and up to 31
December 2020.
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Nomination policy

The nomination committee of the Company utilizes various methods for
identifying candidates for directorship, including recommendations from
Board members, management and professional search firms. In addition,
the nomination committee of the Company will consider candidates for
directorship properly submitted by the Shareholders. The evaluation
of candidates for directorship by the nomination committee of the
Company may include, without limitation, review of biographies and
working experience, personal interviews, verification of professional
and personal references and performance of background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the nomination committee
of the Company and is responsible for designating the candidates for
directorship to be considered by the Shareholders for their election at the
general meeting of the Company, or appointing the suitable candidate
to act as Director to fill the Board vacancy or as an additional to the
Board members, subject to compliance of the constitutional documents
of the Company. All appointments of Director should be confirmed by
letter of appointment and/or service contract setting out the key terms
and conditions of the appointment of Directors.

The nomination committee of the Company should consider the
following qualifications as a minimum to be required for a candidate
in recommending to the Board to be a potential new Director, or the
continued service of existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and
the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company's success;

an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required
for a member of the Board and the commitment of time and

energy necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;
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independence: the candidates for independent non-executive
directorship should meet the “independence” criteria as required
under the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in
conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee of the Company may also consider such
other factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

COMPLIANCEWITHTHE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listing Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the Directors’ dealings in the
securities of the Company since the Listing and, upon specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she complied
with all applicable code provisions under the Model Code since the
Listing and up to 31 December 2020.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to
deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers and employees

was notified to the Company.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
annual remuneration of 6 senior management of the Company (other
than Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2020 ranged from Nil
to RMB1,000,000.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company may, at its discretion, declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into account,
inter alia, the Group’s earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements, statutory fund reserve requirements and any other
conditions that the Board may consider relevant. Whilst the Board will
review from time to time the determination on proposed dividend
with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above duties during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms
of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs.

Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code on 20 November 2020.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and monitor
the financial reporting process and internal control system and assist
the Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit responsibility. The
audit committee is also responsible for audit performing the corporate
governance duties including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

The audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Qu Wenzhou (the chairman of the audit committee),
Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules, the chairman of the audit committee possesses the

appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

The audit committee did not hold any meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Remuneration committee

The Company established the remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The remuneration committee of the Company
reviews and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other
benefits paid by the Group to its Directors and senior management.
The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in the
Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration comprises basic salaries and allowances, bonus, equity-
settled share based payments and retirement benefit contributions. The
remuneration of all the Directors and senior management is subject to
regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that levels
of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The remuneration committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely independent non-executive Directors Ms. Xin Zhu
(the chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. Qu Wenzhou and
executive Director Ms. Zhang Jianhua.

The remuneration committee of the Company did not hold any meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
on 20 November 2020. The primary responsibilities of the nomination
committee of the Company are to consider and recommend to the
Board suitable and qualified candidates of Directors and to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the board diversity
policy adopted by the Company on a regular basis.

The nomination committee of the Company consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director. The three members are executive Director Mr. Wu Di (the
chairman of the nomination committee), independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Tam Cai Choi and Ms. Xin Zhu.

As the Company was listed on 11 December 2020, the nomination
committee of the Company did not hold any meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
SYSTEMS

INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishment,
review and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. The internal control system covers all major
aspects of the Group’s operations, including, among others, property
development, property sales, investment property management,
procurement, financial reporting, asset management, budgeting and
accounting processes. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Group also has set up the risk management
department to advise the executive Directors and senior management
regarding the risk control and compliance issues arising from the day-
to-day business operations of the PRC subsidiaries. The risk management
department is responsible for setting up the procedures for identification,
assessment and management of major risks, the procedures for reviewing
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control system, the
procedures for addressing defect of internal control, the procedures
for dealing with and publication of insider information and advising
corresponding internal control measures. The Board considers that the
current composition of the risk management and control team offers
the expertise to provide a risk assessment of key areas of concern, such
as strategy, operations, finance and compliance, to the Board and assists
the Board to effectively plan and manage the operations of the Group's

overall business.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services were approximately RMB4.05 million in total.

The auditor is also the reporting accountant of the Listing. A total of
RMB4.13 million (2019: RMB2.00 million) has been paid and payable
for its services in connection with the issue and listing of shares of the
Company which has been included in share issuance costs and listing
expenses (2019: prepayments and listing expenses) as appropriate. The
audit committee was satisfied that the non-audit services in 2020 did
not affect the independence of the auditor.

RERBERARAT - —Z-TFFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERRE
REEERAEEZRR
RREERAHEERR
BERRBAERBAREY - B RATAEER

RRERRAMEERR EFGERHABARTA
SEAERELERATHRAREERAREERRRE
WMABR WELBFEE—RELGHRN - AHE
REARREAKBELWMETERER  EFEEY
EH%  MERHEE  REVMEEE  RE  PHH
W BEEEE  KABREREHRERFT - ZFFRGR
SEEEMIPERREEZKRERBRNRR - BEF
FHEEMIFBHRETERERKRERAHIRR -
AEBETTARTRBREZES - UihERBARNA
FEBECELNARZEHRAREERANTEER
ERERERHEER EREENEERIANH
R AEREREARBROERF - BURFTERERE
MABEZERRARENREF - BRRIEIERKD
BF  BREMBAARBBEENEFIANRZZBERNA
MR c EFERR  AREZERNAAERE
RRAEFTSRHIZNIARKR  BY  WBRE
REBEMATRNETRRNG  LHBPHEFTEER
REINEEAEENEREKES -

2 B 32 B

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE @ RBZRE MIEEZAR
BENHENTE B KEGTRMEBIANEME T
PARBA05EETT °

ZRERMMNALETRERERSHE - REBERRFRG
BORLEMHREMEN RENEGTARK4L13EE
TL(2019%F : AR®20088T) ' BEEFTARMNET
AR EWFEZ (2019 : ERRER ETRE) - 8§
%Z B g RN 20205 E M IEEIZRE I RZEIZEED
B ERRERE o

89



90

DATANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED « Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tang Guozhong and Ms. Ng Wing Shan are the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Ms. Ng is the assistant vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Ng's primary
contact at the Company is Mr. Tang Guozhong. Mr. Tang and Ms. Ng has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2020, they have taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographies of Mr. Tang and Ms. Ng
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after submission of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such submission the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association regarding
procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as Director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written requisition.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the joint company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 40th Floor,
Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change to the Company's constitutional documents
since the Listing Date. The memorandum of association of the Company
and the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and
investors in a timely, open and transparent manner. During the year
under review, the Directors and senior management of the Company
participated in roadshows and investment meetings. Corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars
and announcements) are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner and
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiry from investors and shareholders, please contact:

Telephone: (852) 3703 4678
Email: ir@dyna888.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of our Board including convening general meetings and
reporting our Board’s work at our general meetings, determining our
business and investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets
and final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions and
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles.
We have entered into a service agreement with each of our executive
Directors. We have also entered into a letter of appointment with each
of our independent non-executive Directors.
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The table below shows certain information in respect of members of TRIINBBEFSRARGSREEEKENET
our Board and senior management of our Company: BEHL
Members of our Board BEEEHNE
Date of
Date of joining appointment as  Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group Director responsibilities
BZER
HE Fie BERHK MAXEBZzH EEZH AEREE
Mr. Wu Di 55  Executive Director 22 January 2011 14 December 2018 Responsible for the overall strategic
R aE and chairman 201141 H22H 2018124148 development and major

HITEERER

Mr. Hao Shengchun 46
=S

Executive Director
and president

HITESREH

22 January 2011
20114F1 H22H

Executive Director
and joint
company
secretary

MITESR

BN mIME

Mr. Tang Guozhong 46
EEE A

22 January 2011
201141 A22H

business decisions of our Group
BEAKENEBRBERERLE
RERRE

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

Responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development,
operational planning and daily
operation of our Group

BEBAREE AR R
R’ EEERAEEY

11 November 2019
201911 A11H

Responsible for securities
management, risk management
and public relations
management of our Group

BEAEEESERE  RARER
RAHKBRER



Name Age

B T

Existing position

RERE
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Date of joining
our Group

MAXEEZH

Date of
appointment as
Director
BEER
Ex2H

EEREREERE

Roles and
responsibilities

AeRERE

Ms. Zhang Jianhua 68
REELL

Mr. Qu Wenzhou 48
JESTUM A £

Ms. Xin Zhu 52
FHI L

Mr. Tam Chi Choi 56
BET A

Executive Director

WITES

Independent non-
executive Director

BUIFMITES

Independent non-
executive Director

BIUIFTES

Independent non-
executive Director

BIUIFRITES

22 January 2011
2011491 A22H

20 November 2020
2020%F11 A20H

20 November 2020
2020411 A20H

20 November 2020
2020911 A20H

11 November 2019
201911 A1 H

20 November 2020
20204F11 A 20H

20 November 2020
2020911 A20H

20 November 2020
20204F11 H20H

Responsible for human resources
management of our Group

BEAKBANERER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BERAEENKE RERREH
BAUER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BEMAEENKE REBRM
BIER

Responsible for providing
independent advice on the
operations and management of
our Group

BERAREENLE KEERH
BUER
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Wen

Members of senior management SREEENE
Date of
appointment
Date of joining as senior Roles and
Name Age Existing position our Group management responsibilities
BEER
SREEERE
HE FiR BRERK hMAFX&EEBzHE 2ZH AEREE
Mr. Lin Ruiyan 50 Vice president 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for investment
IR B EE Bl 201181 A22H 201181 A22R management and financial
management of our Group
BEAEEREEENVKER
Mr. Wang Xuting 56  Vice president 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for administrative
FHE=EE ElEGE 201141 H22H 201141 H22H management, legal
management and operation
of our commercial operation
companies
BERITHRER A ERE LM
Mr. Zhang Huojin 48  Vice president 22 January 2011 12 January 2019 Responsible for operation of our
RANE L EIEGESY 201141 A22H 20191 A 128 subsidiaries in Tianjin
BERMREMBAFINES
Mr. Ng Yan 53 Assistant to the 22 January 2011 22 January 2011 Responsible for assisting in
RREE Chairman 201181 A22H 201181 A22R investment and financing
EERE management of our Group
BEBPHAEBNRE REE
e
Ms. Mi Yuanyuan 45 Assistant to the 22 January 2011 18 January 2016 Responsible for contract cost
KEIREZ L president 20114E1 A22H 20165F1 518H management of our Group,
FEESg:npeil operation and assisting
in product development
management of our Group
BEREEARGEEERE B2
N pBhEmFEE R
Mr. Liu Weiping 40  Financial controller 16 July 2011 10 July 2017 Responsible for funds management
REFEE and fund 201147 R16H 201747108 and assisting in financial
controller management of our Group
MIGRERES BEAKEESEE RGBS
48 B =5



Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Di (&3#), aged 55, was appointed as our Director on 14
December 2018 and was appointed as the chairman of our Board and
redesignated as our executive Director on 11 November 2019. Mr. Wu
joined our Group in January 2011 as the president of Xiamen Datang and
has since then been responsible for the overall strategic development
and major business decisions of our Group. Mr. Wu currently holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of our Group, including Xiamen
Datang, Zhangzhou Datang and Zhangzhou Xindi.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr. Wu
joined Fuxin Group as a president in January 2003, and since January
2016, has been the chairman of the board of directors of Fuxin Group and
he is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning. Since October
1993, Mr. Wu has been working at Xiamen Fuxin. Since June 2012, he
has been a non-executive director of China Minsheng Banking Corp,,
Ltd. (FRERARITIRID B R A ), the A shares and H shares of which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600016) and
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01988), respectively.
Since January 2011, he has been a director of Hangzhou United Rural
Commercial Bank Co,, Ltd (fi/NBsE& B B ERITRD AR A)).
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Mr. Wu is a council member of Jimei University (235K E2) in the PRC.
He is currently a representative of the thirteenth session of the Fujian
Provincial People’s Congress ({832 & %+ =@ AR KR F), and has
been a member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FBIARBUAHE ) of Xiamen since
2007. Mr. Wu was appointed as the honorary chairman of the second
Non-state-owned Enterprise Chamber of Commerce in Fujian (f82%&
REMHER D) in December 2017, the vice chairman of Fujian Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (1@ &4 T 5) in August 2017
and a standing chairman of China International Chamber of Commerce
for the Private Sector (F1EI R & & BB S /ER ) in May 2012.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor's degree in fishery machinery from the
Xiamen Institute of Aquatic Products (BPI7KEET) (now known as
Fisheries College of Jimei University (£ E R Z2IKEZT)) in the PRC in
July 1986, and completed an advanced course in global economics from
Xiamen University (EFIAE2) in the PRC in May 1998. He obtained a
doctorate’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China (47
ARAKE) in the PRC in January 2014 and has been serving as a guest
professor of Renmin University of China since then. Mr. Wu obtained a
senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department

(@A AZEEE) in December 2005.

Mr. Wu received multiple awards in recognition of his outstanding
achievements. Mr. Wu obtained an outstanding contribution award of
Fujian Merchants Construction of Haixi area (B2 :%/8 82 H B &
#%) by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013. He obtained
an outstanding contribution award of non-public economic individual
donation and public welfare GEABHILBEALTBEAZESE) in

Fujian Province by Fujian Provincial People’s Government in June 2013.
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Mr. Hao Shengchun (#8 %), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for assisting in the
overall strategic development, operational planning and daily operation
of our Group. Mr. Hao joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant
to the president of Xiamen Datang, and was promoted to vice president
and executive vice president in January 2013 and July 2014, respectively.
Mr. Hao was appointed as the president of our Group in January 2015.

Mr. Hao has over 20 years of experience in real estate industry. From
March 2003 to January 2011, Mr. Hao worked at Xiamen Xindi, where
he last served as a vice president and was primarily responsible for the
cost management, engineering technology and marketing operations.
From August 2000 to March 2003, Mr. Hao worked at South Asia Real
Estate Holding Co.,, Ltd. (F z 2 & B B R A 7)), a property developer,
as a civil engineer where he was primarily responsible for the on-site
management of its property development projects. From July 1996 to
August 2000, Mr. Hao worked at the China Construction Fifth Engineering
Bureau the Second Construction and Installation (Hunan) Co., Ltd. (FR &
RBE - BELTEGHR) A F)), where he last served as deputy project
manager and was primarily responsible for its project management, cost

management and on-site construction management.

Mr. Hao obtained a diploma in industrial and civil construction from
Yueyang University (FEF%AZ2) (now known as Hunan University of
Technology ($F3E T AKE2)) in the PRC in July 1996. Mr. Hao obtained
a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from Central South
University (FFEGAE) in the PRC in December 2002. Mr. Hao became
a certified construction cost engineer in January 2003, and a certified
Class 1 constructor (—#%23&HM) in February 2008. Mr. Hao also obtained
qualification as a construction economist by the Personnel Department
(AZEER) of the PRC in December 2002.
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Mr. Tang Guozhong (& Bl #Z), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019, and is primarily responsible for securities
management, risk management and public relations management of
our Group. Mr. Tang joined our Group in January 2011, served as a vice
president of Xiamen Datang.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
July 1999 to December 2000, Mr. Tang served as a deputy manager of
the finance department of Xiamen Fuxin, and was responsible for its
financial management. From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr. Tang
worked at Fuxin Group, where he last served as a financial controller
and was primarily responsible for its financial management.

Since December 2016, Mr. Tang has been a vice president of the
general chamber of commerce of Xiamen Association of Industry and
Commerce (BP9 L (4 E)) and a vice president of Xiamen
Chamber of Commerce in Shanghai (/8T EFIRE®). Mr. Tang was a
standing committee member of Xiamen Foreign Investment Enterprise
Association (EPITSNEIRE B EWRE) from June 2013 to May 2019,
and has been a vice president of the association since June 2019.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in auditing in July 1996, a master’s
degreein accounting in July 1999 and a doctorate’s degree in accounting
in July 2005, all from Xiamen University (B F9KXE2) in the PRC. Mr. Tang
became a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant
in December 1998 and a registered tax advisor in the PRC in June 2001.
He also obtained a senior accountant certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (f&i£%& A ZEE2) in May 2005.
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Ms. Zhang Jianhua (3R %), aged 68, was appointed as our executive
Director on 11 November 2019 and is responsible for human resources
management of our Group. Ms. Zhang joined our Group in January 2011,
served as a vice president of Xiamen Datang and she became a director
of Xiamen Datang in January 2016.

Ms. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in real estate industry. Ms.
Zhang served as a vice president of Fuxin Group from May 1995 to
October 2019 and was primarily responsible for its human resources
management. From December 1993 to January 2011, Ms. Zhang served

as a deputy general manager and director of Xiamen Fuxin.

From December 2007 to November 2016, Ms. Zhang served as a vice
president of Chamber of Commerce of Siming District, Xiamen (& ]
mERRE ), and has been an honorary president since November
2016. Ms. Zhang has been a council member of the Alumni Association
of Jimei University (583K 22) in the PRC since July 2007,

Ms. Zhang obtained a diploma for special training program for
government and party cadres (EE#HIPEIEED) from the Open
University of Fujian ({8 f2& BHEERKRE) in the PRC in July 1986. Ms.
Zhang obtained a senior economist certificate from Fujian Provincial
Personnel Department (f&#2& A EB&) in December 2005.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qu Wenzhou (J&3ZM), aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. Mr. Qu is currently the dean of the Jinyuan Institute for
Financial Studies (& [EIfff EPi), professor of the School of Management,
and the head of Business Administration Education Center of Xiamen
University (B FPTKE) in the PRC.

Mr. Qu started to work at Xiamen University in the PRC as an associate
professor in 2005 and became a professor in 2007.

Mr. Qu is currently serving or had served as an independent non-
executive director or independent director during the three years
immediately proceeding the date of this annual report in the following
listed companies:

BAFHITES

JESUMSEE © 485% © 2020511 A20 R EZEAB T
FHITES AENAEENCEREEREBILE
Ro-BrRERAPREMAZSERAERRE - B2
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Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
LR

AR 7% BA R NEEH FTEEK R B

Since August 2019 Fuyao Glass Manufacturing float Stock Exchange Independent
Industry Group Co., Ltd. glass, automobile glass (stock code: 3606) non-executive

and construction glass director

BH2019F8 A8 BREHEIZEERNE SEDEWRE  AEFE B BUIERITES
iR A A NSRS (B 5R - 3606)

Since September 2018 China Merchants Shekou Development and operation Shenzhen Stock Independent
Industrial Zone Holdings of industrial parks, Exchange (stock director
Co,, Ltd. communities and cruise code: 001979)

business

B20184F9 A 2 BERBR O TXEERR IXER- - dREkBHE RAIESSH BIES

(aE=1 VNG ERREREE (AP R5R -
001979)

Since March 2015 Guangdong Baolihua New  New energy power Shenzhen Stock Independent

Energy Stock Co., Ltd. generation Exchange (stock director
code: 000690)

H2015F3 A% BREBEMLIRRG HELIREE RYFEHZZ 5P BUES

A7 (B R

000690)
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Name of Place of listing and
Period of services company Principal business stock code Position(s)
L RR
BR % #A REEH FEEHK IR A3 K5 B
Since January 2016 Ronshine China Holdings Property development Stock Exchange Independent
Limited (stock code: 3301) non-executive
director
H2016%F1 A2 BIEPBEERAR AR MEFE B P (BRin X BIUFAITES

From December 2013
to July 2019

2013F 128 %
201947 A

From July 2016 to
July 2019

2016F7A %
2019%7 A

From September 2011
to December 2017

201MF9AE
2017412 A

From August 2010 to
September 2018

2010F8 A&
201859 A

Geo-Jade Petroleum
Corporation

ME R AR AF]

Fujian Septwolves Industry
Co, Ltd

RETLREXRNER
]

Fujian Cosunter

Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd.

BREBEEEXRMNAR

R A]

Mingfa Group
(International)
Company Limited

AR R E (BB ) AR AR

Exploration and
development of oil and
gas

RN IR K 2

Fashion design and
manufacturing

oo
-
i
X

W R

Manufacturing of
crude drug

RF B E

Property development

SE e

Mr. Qu has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since November 2003 and a chartered financial analyst
authorized by the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute since November
2004.

Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied mathematics, a master’s
degree in finance, a master's degree in business administration and a
doctorate’s degree in finance, all from Xiamen University (B F9AE2) in
the PRC in July 1995, July 1999, July 2001 and July 2003, respectively.

2 3301)

Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 600759)

BB AFRZSH
(AR 5% -
600759)

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 002029)

RIYNFE 35 P
(AR R5R -
002029)

Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 300436)

RINFEHZ ST
(B 55 -
300436)

Stock Exchange
(stock code: 846)

Bt <2 B
(R R5R - 846)

Independent director

Independent
director

BUEE

Independent director

BIEE

Independent
non-executive
director
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Ms. Xin Zhu (£ 2k), aged 52, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 20 November 2020. Ms. Xin is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group.

Ms. Xin has over 15 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From February
2001 to February 2006, Ms. Xin worked at Guangdong Holdings Limited
(BREBZEREEEGRAR

development, manufacturing and real estate, where she last served

), a company engaged in infrastructure

as a deputy general manager of finance department of the group and
financial controller of its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited (RYI|& BB & E AR A 7)), where she was responsible for
the financial management of the group and ERP Informationization
Construction. From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (&4 &R E BB A F)) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 754), a
property developer, where she last served as a vice president, and was
primarily responsible for financial management, financing and fund
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan
Group Limited (FBIREEBEKRHER AR (previously known as
China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (9 Bl 88 [&] 1t & & B ix (0 B IR
X)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3883), a property developer, with her last concurrent positions held
as an executive director and executive vice president, and was primarily
responsible for financial management, fund management and internal
auditing. She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions
making of land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group
Limited. From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (RE Yt HbETERY B
R 2 A)) (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) where she was primarily responsible for financing.
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Since June 2018, Ms. Xin has been an independent non-executive
director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (R £ A F)) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales of
vaccines. Since April 2020, she has been an independent non-executive
director of Central China New Life Limited GEEFAEBR AR (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
9983), a property management service provider.

Ms. Xin obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (F BI A R AZ2) in the PRCin July 1990 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of Studies
in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin became a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the PRC in February
1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January 2010.

Mr. Tam Chi Choi (FE& 7), aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2020 and is responsible for
providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

Mr. Tam has around 33 years of accounting and finance experience. He
began his career at KPMG Peat Marwick from August 1987 to April 1991
and his last position was audit supervisor. He worked as an accounting
manager of Kosonic Industries Company Limited from May 1991 to
July 1992 and as a deputy accounting manager of Applied Electronics
(OEM) Limited from December 1992 to July 1994. From August 1994 to
November 2015, he worked at the listing division of the Stock Exchange
and his last position was vice president of the IPO transactions, listing
and regulatory affairs division. From November 2015 to October 2017,
he served as a director of the quality and risk control division of CCB
International Capital Limited. He was the responsible officer of Proton
Capital Limited from February 2018 to September 2018. He has served
as a corporate finance director of Eric Chow & Co. in association with
Commerce and Finance Law Offices since September 2018. Since August
2019, Mr. Tam has been an independent non-executive director of
Sinic Holdings (Group) Company Limited (#7712 (EE) B R A 7))
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2103), a property developer. Since March 2021, Mr. Tam has been
an independent non-executive director of Helenbergh China Holdings
Limited (& fm & BIIEAR B PR A F)), a property developer.
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Mr. Tam obtained an honors diploma in accounting from Hong
Kong Baptist College in July 1987 and a master's degree in business
administration from the University of Canberra in Australia in December
2002. He became a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in October 1995 and October 2000, respectively. Mr. Tam was a committee
member of the ACCA Hong Kong Committee from 2003 to 2008.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have held any other
directorships in listed companies during the three years immediately

preceding the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there are no other changes to
the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day operations

and management of our business.

Mr. Lin Ruiyan (#K¥548), aged 50, was appointed as our vice president
in January 2015 and is primarily responsible for investment management
and financial management of our Group.

Mr. Lin has more than 15 years of experience in real estate industry. Mr.
Lin joined our Group in January 2011 as a financial controller and was
later promoted as a vice president in January 2015. Prior to joining our
Group, from June 2008 to January 2011, Mr. Lin worked at Xiamen Xindi
where he successively served as a deputy financial manager, a financial
controller and assistant to president of Xiamen Xindi, where he was
primarily responsible for its financial management. From November
2002 to June 2008, Mr. Lin worked at Fuxin Group where he last served
as an accounting department manager and was primarily responsible

for its accounting management.
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Mr. Lin obtained a diploma in accounting from Jimei Financial College
(EEHFHERIER) in the PRC in July 1992. He obtained a graduation
certificate in accounting from Fuzhou University (&8N A E2) in the PRC
in December 2007. Mr. Lin received a qualification as a certified public
accountant in the PRC in December 1999 and became a registered tax
advisor in the PRCin June 2004. Mr. Lin also obtained a senior accountant
certificate from Fujian Provincial Personnel Department ({8i2& AH
EE) in May 2009.

Mr. Wang Xuting (E# =), aged 56, joined our Group in January 2011
as a vice president and has been responsible for the administrative
management, legal management and operation of our commercial

operation companies.

From May 1994 to July 1998, Mr. Wang worked at Xiamen Fuxin as an office
manager and was primarily responsible for its internal management and
public relations. From August 1998 to January 2011, Mr. Wang worked at
Xiamen Xindi where he last served as a vice president and was primarily
responsible for its operational management, public relations, product
development and marketing.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in fishery machinery from the
Xiamen Institute of Aquatic Products (BPI/KEET) (now known as
Fisheries College of Jimei University (5 £ A E2/KEE2FR)) in the PRC in
July 1986. Mr. Wang obtained a senior engineer certificate from Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department ({8324 A EE) in June 2006.

Mr. Zhang Huojin (3& X &), aged 48, was appointed as our vice president
in January 2019 and is responsible for operation of our subsidiaries in
Tianjin.
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Mr. Zhang joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant to general
manager of our Fujian regional companies, and was later promoted as
deputy general manager of our Xiamen regional companies in July 2014,
and standing deputy general manager of our Xiamen regional companies
in July 2017. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the general manager of our
Zhangzhou regional companies in January 2018 and promoted as the
vice president of our Group in January 2019. Prior to joining our Group,
from August 2008 to August 2011, Mr. Zhang served as an assistant to
president and general officer of Xiamen Huatianlong Group (EF9ZE
KB E), a company principally engaged in property development,
where he was responsible for its project design, engineering and
cost control. From July 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Zhang worked at
Xiamen Xindi as a technical department deputy manager, where he was
primarily responsible for its design management. From June 1994 to
June 2000, Mr. Zhang worked as a structural designer at Yunxiao County
Construction Bureau Design Institute (B 5 %2R &

was responsible for its structural design and management.

& 51B%), where he

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering
from Fuzhou University (f&1 K22) in the PRC in July 1994. Mr. Zhang
obtained a senior engineering certificate from Xiamen Municipal
Personnel Department in April 2008. Mr. Zhang became a Class 2
registered architect (Z 4R 5= 72 226M) and a Class 1 registered structural
engineer (—AR =45 TH2EM) in the PRC in September 2000 and
September 2004, respectively.

Mr. Ng Yan ($RfiR), aged 53, was appointed as the assistant to the
Chairman of our Board of our Group in January 2020 and is responsible
for assisting in investment and financing management of our Group.

Mr.Ng joined our Group in January 2011 as an assistant to president and
was primarily responsible for investment management and commercial
properties management. Mr. Ng was a vice president of our Group
from January 2015 to January 2020 and was responsible for investment
management of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, from December
2001 to January 2011, Mr. Ng worked at Xiamen Xindi where he last
served as an assistant to the chairman of the board of directors of Xiamen
Xindi and was responsible for its investment management.
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Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Xiamen University
(BF9RE) in the PRC in July 1989. Mr. Ng obtained an economist
certificate from Xiamen Civil Service Bureau in January 2014

Ms. Mi Yuanyuan (CREE), aged 45, was appointed as assistant
to president in January 2016. She is responsible for contract cost
management of our Group, operation and assisting in product

development management of our Group.

Ms. Mi joined our Group as the general manager of contract cost
department of our Group in January 2011. She became the cost director
and general manager of contract cost department of our Group in July
2014, and has been serving as an assistant to president since January

016. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to January 2011, Ms. Mi
worked at Xiamen Xindi, where she last served as a deputy president
of cost and the general manager of contract cost department and was
responsible for its contract cost control and sourcing management. From
August 1996 to June 2002, Ms. Mi successively worked at branches of
China Construction Bank Corporation (R BIZZIRTTIRHB BR A F]) in
Bengbu and Anging city, Anhui Province.

Ms. Mi obtained a bachelor’s degree in construction engineering from
Anhui Institute of Architecture and Industry (Z &5 T 2 E7) (now
known as Anhui Jianzhu University (ZHFEZE K E)) in the PRC in July
1996. She also obtained a senior engineering certificate from Fujian
Provincial Personnel Department ({834 A EE2) in August 2007, and
a registered cost engineer from Anhui Provincial Personnel Department

LA NEEE) in October 2000.
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Mr. Liu Weiping (2I1&), aged 40, was appointed as our financial
controller and fund controller since July 2017 and is responsible for

funds management and assisting in financial management of our Group.

Mr. Liu joined our Group in July 2011 as an assistant to general manager
of Southwestern China region, and was successively promoted as the vice
general manager of Nanning city company in January 2015, as a fund
controller of our Group in August 2016, and as our financial controller
and fund controller in July 2017. Prior to joining our Group, from April
2005 to April 2008, Mr. Liu served as assistant to general manager of fund
department in Fuxin Group, where he was primarily responsible for its
financing management. From April 2008 to July 2011, Mr. Liu served as
an assistant to the office of board of directors of Fuxin Group.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from Liaoning
University of Petroleum and Chemical Technology (=AML TR
2) in the PRC in July 2002, and a master's degree in economics from
Xiamen University (JEF9AZ2) in the PRC in June 2005. Mr. Liu obtained
an economist certificate from Xiamen Civil Service Bureau in February
2009.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Tang Guozhong (B El$), aged 46, was appointed as one of our
joint company secretaries on 11 November 2019. See “— Board of
Directors” above for more details.

Ms. Ng Wing Shan (R 3k, aged 43, was appointed as one of our
joint company secretaries on 11 November 2019. Ms. Ng is an assistant
vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
and is responsible for assisting listed companies in company secretarial
work. She has over 10 years of professional experience in the company
secretarial field and is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Our Board has established the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee and delegated various
responsibilities to these committees, which assist our Board in discharging
its duties and overseeing particular aspects of our Group's activities.

Audit Committee

Our Group has established an audit committee on 20 November 2020
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The audit
committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Qu Wenzhou, Ms.
Xin Zhu and Mr. Tam Chi Choi, all of whom are our independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Qu Wenzhou is the chairperson of the audit
committee and is our independent non-executive Director with the
appropriate professional qualifications.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to (i) review and supervise
our financial reporting process and internal control system of our Group,
risk management and internal audit; (ii) provide advice and comments
to our Board; and (iii) perform other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board.

Remuneration Committee

Our Group has established a remuneration committee on 20 November
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration committee consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Xin Zhu, Mr. Qu Wenzhou and Ms. Zhang Jianhua.
Ms. Xin Zhu is the chairperson of the remuneration committee.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, but not
limited to (i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to our
Board on our policy and structure concerning remuneration of our
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policies concerning such
remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of each Director and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by our Directors from time to time.

Nomination Committee

Our Group has also established a nomination committee on 20 November
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
nomination committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Wu Dij,
Mr. Tam Chi Choi and Ms. Xin Zhu. Mr. Wu Di is the chairperson of the
nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i) review
the structure, size and composition of our Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board; (ii) identify, select or make
recommendations to our Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship, and ensure the diversity of our Board members; (i)
assess the independence of our independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of our Directors and
succession planning for our Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Company recognizes the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of our Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

Our Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG Code.
Our Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

BOARD DIVERSITY

Our Company recognizes the benefits of having a diversified Board. Our
Company has adopted a board diversity policy with the aim of achieving
an appropriate level of diversity among Board members according to
the circumstances of our Group from time to time. In summary, our
board diversity policy sets out that when considering the nomination
and appointment of a Director, with the assistance of our nomination
committee, our Board would consider a range of diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, professional experience
and qualifications, cultural and educational background, age, gender
and the potential contributions that the candidate is expected to bring
to our Board, in order to better serve the needs and development of
our Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to our Board.

After Listing, our nomination committee will review the board diversity
policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and we
will disclose the policy or a summary thereof in our corporate governance
report on an annual basis.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Our Directors and members of our senior management receive
compensation from our Group in the form of fees, salary and benefit,
housing allowance and contribution to a retirement benefit scheme and
share-based compensation.

Our Board will review and determine the remuneration and compensation
packages of our Directors and senior management and will, following
the Listing, receive recommendation from the remuneration committee
which will take into account salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of our Directors and performance
of our Group.

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

In compliance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, we have appointed
Somerley Capital Limited as our compliance advisor to provide advisory
services to our Company. It is expected that the compliance advisor will,
amongst other things, advise our Company with due care and skill in
the following circumstances:

before the publication of any regulatory announcement, circular
or financial report;

where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or connected
transaction, is contemplated, including shares issues and share
repurchases;

where we propose to use the proceeds from the Global Offering in
a manner different from that detailed in the Prospectus or where
our business activities, developments or results deviate from any
forecast, estimate, or other information in the Prospectus; and

where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of us regarding
unusual movements in the price or trading volume of our Shares.

The term of the appointment shall commence on the Listing Date and
end on the date on which we distribute our annual report in respect
of our financial results for the first full financial year commencing after
the Listing Date and such appointment may be subject to extension
by mutual agreement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g o
pwec

To the Shareholders of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Datang Group Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 121
to 267, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAEEENNEEFAREREE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

Refer to note 4 “Critical accounting estimates and judgements”,
note 22 “Properties under development” and note 23 “Completed
properties held for sale” to the consolidated financial statements.

Properties under development (“PUD") and completed properties
held for sale ("PHS") of the Group amounted to RMB23,444 million
and RMB2,135 million respectively as at 31 December 2020, which
in total accounted for approximately 54% of the Group's total assets.
The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV").

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
development plans, and a forecast of future selling price with
reference to the current market price of properties of comparable
type, size and location. The determination of NRV involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling price, variable selling expenses
and, for PUD, the costs to completion.

For assessment of NRV, we assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors, and performed audit
procedures as follows:

(i) Obtained an understanding of, evaluated and tested, on a
sample basis, the relevant internal control procedures over
the Group's process in determining the NRV;

(i) Compared the actual selling prices of relevant PUD and PHS in
2020, on a sample basis, against the result of management's
assessment made in the prior year to assess the accuracy of

management’s historical NRV assessment; and

(i)  Tested management's key estimates, on a sample basis, for:

. selling price which is estimated based on the prevailing
market conditions, we compared the estimated selling
price to recent transactions by making reference to the
Group's selling price of pre-sold units or the prevailing
market price of comparable properties with comparable

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV because the total
balance of PUD and PHS is significant and the estimation of the NRV
is subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty. Therefore, the .
assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is considered a key audit matter.

type, size and location.

variable selling expenses which were estimated based

on certain percentage of selling price, we compared the

above estimated percentage with the budget and the
actual average selling expenses to revenue ratio of the
Group in recent years.

. estimated costs to completion for PUD, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the budget and
examined the construction contracts or compared the
anticipated completion costs to the actual costs of similar
type of completed properties of the Group.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in the
assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS were supportable by available
evidence.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communi